
 

 
 
 

EUREKA TOWNSHIP 
Dakota County, State of Minnesota 

 

AGENDA 
TOWN BOARD MEETING  
April 8, 2025 – 7:00 p.m. 

 
I. Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance 

 
II. Approval of the Agenda  

 
III. Public Comment  

The opinions expressed in public comments are those of the authors and may not represent the official 
positions of the Town Board. The Town Board does not control or guarantee the accuracy of 
information contained in the comments, nor does it endorse the views expressed.  

 
IV. Reports 

A. Sheriff’s Department 
B. Planning Commission- Dan Heyda 

 
V. Dakota County Soil and Water- David Holmen Pages 3-54 

A. Application for replacement by purchased credits 
 

VI. CUP Reviews 
A. 5E Properties Pages 55-57 
B. Chris Hale Pages 58-60 
C. Living Waters  Pages 61-67 

 
VII. Dakota Aggregates- Brosseth Mine Pages 68-71 

 
VIII. Permits 

A. Buermann, Kevin, 24598 Iberia Ave., PIN 13-24660-11-030, *Accessory Building Pages 
72-90 

B. Storlie, Alan & Joan, 6987 255th St. W., PIN 13-02200-26-022, *Addition/Remodel 
Pages 91-100 

C. Tousignant, David, 23590 Cedar Ave., PIN 13-01000-56-012, *AG Exempt Bldg. Pages 101-
110 
 

IX. Land Use Request 
A. King, David, 22702 Hamburg Ave., PIN 13-00400-75-020 Pages 111-153 
       *Lot-Split, Shared Housing Right Eligibility Status, Moving a Building Permit(s) 

 
X. IUP Application- David King (Applewood Orchard) 

A. Public Comment (only on the IUP Application) 
B. Resolution 2025-    Pages 154-161 

 
XI. Citizen Inquiry 

A. Ashley Schultze- 240-43 Animal Unit  Page 162 



 

 
 
 

 
XII. Road Report (Ceminsky) 

A. Chubb Lake Road Crossing 
 

XIII. Consent Agenda 
A. 3.12.2025 Special Town Board Meeting Minutes  Pages 163-164 
B. 3.12.2025 Town Board Meeting Minutes Pages 165-170 
C. 3.27.2025 Special Town Board Minutes  Page 171 

 
XIV. Treasurer’s Report 

A. March  Treasurer’s Report  Pages 1-18 
B. Net pay and claims   Pages 19-99 

i. Net Pay:   11,323.50   
ii. Claims:     35,163.29   

iii. Total:        46,486.79  
C. March Disbursements $53,521.74  & Receipts $72,218.83 Pages 100-106 
D. Other Reports: Cash Control Statement, Schedule 1, PTO, Investments with accrued 

interest  Pages 107-112 
E. CD Recommendations 

 
XV. Unfinished Business 

A. Orderly Annexation Agreements- Conversations with Cities 
B. City of Lakeville 222nd Street- Meeting with County Commissioner Slavik 
C. MPM Chard Mining Reclamation 
D. Resolution 2025-   Official Publication Page 172 
E. Castle Rock Road Swap- Meeting?  (Ceminsky) 

 

XVI. New Business 
A. Article VII. Domestic and Nondomestic Animals, Subsection 240-43. Page 173 
B. Commercial/Industrial 
C. Resolution 2025-  Amendment to Resolution 2024-27  Pages 174-175 
D. Special Meeting date for Northern Natural Gas CUP  

 
XVII. Clerk Matters 

A. Mid-year Employee reviews (May) 
 

XVIII. Adjournment  
 

Upcoming Meetings/Dates: 

 May 6, 2025, at 7pm  Planning Commission Meeting 

 May 13, 2025, at 7pm Town Board Meeting 

 May 20, 2025, at 7pm TB and PC Round Table 

******************************************************************************************* 
A quorum of the Planning Commission may be in attendance.  No Planning Commission discussion or 
action will be taken. 

 



 
  

22260 Dodd Blvd. & PID 130050027011 
Eureka Township, (Dakota County), MN 
Wetland Replacement Plan 

 
Prepared for: 
Joseph Miller 
22260 Dodd Blvd. 
Lakeville, MN 55044 
 
March 5, 2025 

 
  
  
   
  
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
MIDWEST NATURAL RESOURCES, INC.  
1032 West 7th Street, Suite 150 
St. Paul, Minnesota 55102 
 

3



  Project Name:  22260 Dodd Blvd. & PID 130050027011, Eureka Twp., MN  

PART ONE: Applicant Information 
If applicant is an entity (company, government entity, partnership, etc.), an authorized contact person must be identified.  If the 
applicant is using an agent (consultant, lawyer, or other third party) and has authorized them to act on their behalf, the agent’s 
contact information must also be provided. 

Applicant/Landowner Name: Joseph Miller 
Mailing Address: 22260 Dodd Blvd., Lakeville, MN 55044 
Phone: 612-269-6370 
E-mail Address: joeymiller@mac.com  

 
Authorized Contact (do not complete if same as above):       
Mailing Address:       
Phone:       
E-mail Address:       
 

Agent Name: Ken Arndt, Midwest Natural Resources, Inc. 
Mailing Address: 1032 W. 7th St. Suite 150, St. Paul, MN 55102 
Phone: 651-788-0641 
E-mail Address: ken.arndt@mnrinc.us  

 

PART TWO: Site Location Information 
County: Dakota City/Township: Eureka Township 
Parcel ID and/or Address: 22260 Dodd Blvd. & PID 130050027011 
  
Legal Description (Section, Township, Range): Sections 5 & 6, T113N, R20W 
Lat/Long (decimal degrees): 44.627803, -93.257105 
Attach a map showing the location of the site in relation to local streets, roads, highways.  
              
Approximate size of site (acres) or if a linear project, length (feet): na  

 

PART THREE: General Project/Site Information 
If this application is related to a delineation approval, exemption determination, jurisdictional determination, or other 
correspondence submitted prior to this application then describe that here and provide the Corps of Engineers project number. 

MN Wetland Conservation Act Replacement Order (Reference Number: 1CR:24019112) by Dakota Co. SWCD dated 1/10/2025 

Describe the project that is being proposed, the project purpose and need, and schedule for implementation and completion. The 
project description must fully describe the nature and scope of the proposed activity including a description of all project elements 
that effect aquatic resources (wetland, lake, tributary, etc.) and must also include plans and cross section or profile drawings 
showing the location, character, and dimensions of all proposed activities and aquatic resource impacts.   

A replacement plan is being submitted for Joseph Miller to mitigate wetland impacts that occurred without a permit from the 
Local Government Unit or the Army Corps of Engineers. The two properties where the wetland impacts occurred include PID 
130050027011 (Living Waters Baptist Church property) and 22260 Dodd Blvd. (Miller property), Eureka Township, Minnesota.  
 

 

4



5



 
 Project Name:  22260 Dodd Blvd. & PID 130050027011, Eureka Twp., MN 

Attachment C 
Avoidance and Minimization 

 and Additional Information  
Project Purpose, Need, and Requirements. Clearly state the purpose of your project and need for your project.  Also include a 
description of any specific requirements of the project as they relate to project location, project footprint, water management, 
and any other applicable requirements. Attach an overhead plan sheet showing all relevant features of the project (buildings, 
roads, etc.), aquatic resource features (impact areas noted) and construction details (grading plans, storm water management 
plans, etc.), referencing these as necessary: 

Midwest Natural Resources, Inc. (MNR) is submitting this replacement plan on behalf of Joseph Miller to the Local 
Government Unit (Dakota County SWCD) to comply with the MN WCA replacement order issued to him on 
1/10/2025. From review of a wetland determination both on and off-site for two properties located at 22260 Dodd 
Blvd. (Miller Property) and PID 130050027011 (Living Waters Baptist Church Property) in 2024 the LGU identified 
potential wetland fill violations on these properties. The Technical Evaluation Panel (TEP) met virtually twice to 
identify potential fill activities and to calculate areas of impact utilizing historical and current aerial imagery. On 
September 9, 2024 the TEP met with MNR staff and Joseph Miller to review the wetland impact areas on-site. From 
these three meetings, areas of wetland impact were identified between the two properties. 

WCA Replacement Order Reference Number:    1CR:24019112 

Replacement Plan 

As a result of the wetland impacts identified by the LGU on the two properties, replacement at a 4:1 ratio via the 
purchase of wetland banking credits from bank 1740 will be utilized to offset the wetland impacts and to satisfy the 
replacement order. For the wetland impacts that occurred within 22260 Dodd Blvd., they total 0.2852 acre between 
two separate wetland areas. For the wetland impact that occurred within PID 130050027011, it totaled 0.0988 acre 
within one wetland area. Replacement for these wetland impacts will total 1.2396 acres of wetland banking credit 
that will be purchased. 

Proposed Wetland Mitigation 

Wetland mitigation being proposed for impacting the three wetland areas between the Miller Property and the 
Living Waters Baptist Church property will involve the purchase of a total of 49,693 sq. ft. (1.2396 ac.) of Type 2 
(fresh wet meadow) wetland banking credit from wetland bank 1740.  

Joseph Miller Property 0.2852 acre of impact replaced at 4:1 ratio = 1.1408 acres  
Living Waters Baptist Church Property 0.0988 acre of impact replaced at 4:1 ratio = 0.0247 acre 

Since the two properties are both located within the Vermillion River Watershed Joint Powers Organization 
(VRWJPO) area, wetland credits need to come from a wetland bank that is located within the VRWJPO area if 
available. Wetland bank 1740 is located within the VRWJPO area as well as the same Major Watershed 38 and BSA 
8 as the site. This action of purchasing wetland banking credit from bank 1740 should satisfy the mitigation 
requirements for impacting the three wetlands within the two properties.  

 
 
 
 

6



 

Attachment D 
Replacement/Compensatory Mitigation 

Complete this part if your application involves wetland replacement/compensatory mitigation not associated with the local road 
wetland replacement program. Applicants should consult Corps mitigation guidelines and WCA rules for requirements. 

Replacement/Compensatory Mitigation via Wetland Banking. Complete this section if you are proposing to use credits from an 
existing wetland bank (with an account number in the State wetland banking system) for all or part of your 
replacement/compensatory mitigation requirements. 

Wetland Bank 
Account # 

County 
Major 

Watershed # 

Bank 
Service 
Area # 

Credit Type 
(if applicable) Number of Credits 

1740 Dakota 38-Mississippi 
River-Lake 

Pepin  

8 SWC 49,693 sq. ft. 
(1.2396 ac.) 

Applicants should attach documentation indicating that they have contacted the wetland bank account owner and reached at least 
a tentative agreement to utilize the identified credits for the project. This documentation could be a signed purchase agreement, 
signed application for withdrawal of credits or some other correspondence indicating an agreement between the applicant and the 
bank owner.  However, applicants are advised not to enter into a binding agreement to purchase credits until the mitigation plan is 
approved by the Corps and LGU. 

Bank 1740, which is located within VRWJPO area as well the same Major Watershed and BSA as the site, will be able 
to provide all of the needed wetland credit for this replacement plan. The applicant is proposing to purchase the 
needed wetland banking credits from this wetland bank in order to satisfy the mitigation requirements associated 
with the replacement order. 

Contact has been made with the manager of wetland bank 1740 in January of 2025 to discuss credit availability. 
Based on the amount of wetland banking credit required for the mitigation associated with this replacement order, 
wetland bank 1740 will be able to provide the total amount of wetland credit needed. A purchase agreement with 
wetland bank 1740 is currently being drafted and will be executed by the end of March, 2025. 

Applicant or Representative: 
 
Ken Arndt Title: Wetland Specialist 

 
 
Signature: 

 

Date: 3-5-25 

 

7



 
PURCHASE AGREEMENT  

FOR 
WETLAND BANKING CREDITS 

 

THIS AGREEMENT is between Dakota County (Seller) and Living Waters Baptist Church (Buyer). 

 

1. Seller agrees to sell to Buyer, and Buyer agrees to buy from Seller, the wetland banking credits 

(Credits) listed below: 

*AGC is for Ag bank credits and SWC is for standard bank credits.  

 

2. Seller represents and warrants as follows: 

a) The Credits are deposited in an account in the Minnesota Wetland Bank administered by the 

Minnesota Board of Water and Soil Resources (BWSR) pursuant to Minn. Rules Chapter  

8420.0700-.0760. 

b) Seller owns the Credits and has the right to sell the Credits to Buyer. 

 

3. Buyer will pay Seller a total of $4,926.86 for the Credits, as follows: 

a) $985.37 as earnest money, in the form of a cashier’s check payable to Dakota County 

Treasurer, 1590 Hwy 55, Hastings, MN 55033 to be paid when this Agreement is signed; and 

b) The balance of $3,941.49 in the form of a cashier’s check payable to Dakota County 

Treasurer, 1590 Hwy 55, Hastings, MN 55033 to be paid on the Closing Date listed below. 

 

 

Credits to be Sold 
Credit 

Subgroup 
Credit Type 
SWC or AGC Wetland Type/Plant Community Type Cost per Credit Credit Amounts 

A SWC 2 – Fresh Wet Meadow $49,867 0.0988 
     
     
     
     

Per Credit Withdrawal Fee by BSA* 
Enter the Withdrawal Fee 

for the BSA of the account: 

Total 
Cost: $4,926.86 

Total 
Credits: 0.0988  SWC AGC  SWC AGC 

BSA 1    $520 $270 BSA 6     $1,083 $586 Withdrawal Fee  x total credits = fee 
BSA 2    $371 $191 BSA 7     $1,992 $1,060 $2,577 Withdrawal Fee: $254.60 
BSA 3    $725 $389 BSA 8     $2,577 $1,348 Easement Stewardship Fee: Easement Stewardship fee x total credits = fee 

BSA 4    $1,412 $724 BSA 9     $2,628 $1,332 $302 Stewardship Fee: $29.84 

BSA 5    $685 $367 BSA 10   $3,099 $1,580  Total Fees: $284.44 

Grand Total: $5,211.30 

Docusign Envelope ID: F30FAC51-800A-4953-98E1-39A5682708F1Docusign Envelope ID: E137F520-30D7-4895-8D2C-1C7DC3F5B576

8



 

4.  Buyer, agrees to pay a withdrawal fee of $254.60 to the State of Minnesota based on the per credit fee 

of $2,577 for Bank Service Area 8 and a stewardship fee of $29.84 based on the per credit fee of $302. At 

the Closing Date, Buyer will execute a check made out for this amount, payable to the Board of Water and 

Soil Resources.   

 

5. The closing of the purchase and sale shall occur on or before April 1, 2025 (Closing Date) at a place 

to be determined or by mail.  The Closing Date and location may be changed by written consent of both 

parties.  Upon payment of the balance of the purchase price, Seller will sign a fully executed Transaction 

Form to Withdraw Credits provided by BWSR, provide a copy of the Transaction Form to Withdraw Credits 

to the Buyer and forward the same to the BWSR along with the check for the withdrawal fee and stewardship 

fee. 

 

6. Buyer has applied or will apply to Eureka Township (Local Government Unit (LGU) or other 

regulatory authority) for approval of a replacement plan utilizing the Credits as the means of replacing 

impacted wetlands.  If the LGU has not approved the Buyer’s application for a replacement plan utilizing the 

Credits by the Closing Date, and no postponement of the Closing Date has been agreed to by Buyer and 

Seller in writing, then either Buyer or Seller may cancel this Agreement by giving written notice to the other.  

In this case, Seller shall return Buyer’s earnest money, and neither Buyer nor Seller shall have any further 

obligations under this Agreement.  If the LGU has approved the replacement plan and the Seller is ready to 

proceed with the sale on the Closing Date, but Buyer fails to proceed, then the Seller may retain the earnest 

money as liquidated damages. 

 

 

___________________________________   ___________________________________ 
(Signature of Seller)                  (Date)   (Signature of Buyer)                    (Date) 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:  
 
/s/ Brian J. Wisdorf        3/6/2025       
Assistant Dakota County Attorney/Date 
KS-25-131 
 

Docusign Envelope ID: F30FAC51-800A-4953-98E1-39A5682708F1

03/06/2025 | 1:03 PM PST

Docusign Envelope ID: E137F520-30D7-4895-8D2C-1C7DC3F5B576

03/06/2025 | 3:22 PM CST

9



 
PURCHASE AGREEMENT  

FOR 
WETLAND BANKING CREDITS 

 

THIS AGREEMENT is made between Dakota County (Seller) and Joseph Miller (Buyer). 

 

1. Seller agrees to sell to Buyer, and Buyer agrees to buy from Seller, the wetland banking credits 

(Credits) listed below: 

*AGC is for Ag bank credits and SWC is for standard bank credits.  

 

2. Seller represents and warrants as follows: 

a) The Credits are deposited in an account in the Minnesota Wetland Bank administered by the 

Minnesota Board of Water and Soil Resources (BWSR) pursuant to Minn. Rules Chapter  

8420.0700-.0760. 

b) Seller owns the Credits and has the right to sell the Credits to Buyer. 

 

3. Buyer will pay Seller a total of $56,888.27 for the Credits, as follows: 

a) $11,377.65 as earnest money, in the form of a cashier’s check payable to Dakota County 

Treasurer, 1590 Hwy 55, Hastings, MN 55033 to be paid when this Agreement is signed; and 

 

b) The balance of $45,510.62 in the form of a cashier’s check payable to Dakota County 

Treasurer, 1590 Hwy 55, Hastings, MN 55033 to be paid on the Closing Date listed below. 

 

Credits to be Sold 
Credit 

Subgroup 
Credit Type 
SWC or AGC Wetland Type/Plant Community Type Cost per Credit Credit Amounts 

A SWC 2 – Fresh Wet Meadow $49,867 1.1408 
     
     
     
     

Per Credit Withdrawal Fee by BSA* 
Enter the Withdrawal Fee 

for the BSA of the account: 

Total 
Cost: $56,888.27 

Total 
Credits: 1.1408  SWC AGC  SWC AGC 

BSA 1    $520 $270 BSA 6     $1,083 $586 Withdrawal Fee  x total credits = fee 
BSA 2    $371 $191 BSA 7     $1,992 $1,060 $2,577 Withdrawal Fee: $2,939.84 
BSA 3    $725 $389 BSA 8     $2,577 $1,348 Easement Stewardship Fee: Easement Stewardship fee x total credits = fee 

BSA 4    $1,412 $724 BSA 9     $2,628 $1,332 $302 Stewardship Fee: $344.52 

BSA 5    $685 $367 BSA 10   $3,099 $1,580  Total Fees: $3,284.36 

Grand Total: $60,172.63 

Docusign Envelope ID: 4613FD15-CD4B-4FC3-A9D2-584B38B141D0Docusign Envelope ID: B858923D-BF5D-4F34-877C-7466A4AF7B77

10



 

4.  Buyer, agrees to pay a withdrawal fee of $2,939.84 to the State of Minnesota based on the per credit 

fee of $2,577 for Bank Service Area 8 and a stewardship fee of $344.52 based on the per credit fee of $302. 

At the Closing Date, Buyer will execute a check made out for this amount, payable to the Board of Water 

and Soil Resources.   

 

5. The closing of the purchase and sale shall occur on or before April 1, 2025 (Closing Date) at a place 

to be determined or by mail.  The Closing Date and location may be changed by written consent of both 

parties.  Upon payment of the balance of the purchase price, Seller will sign a fully executed Transaction 

Form to Withdraw Credits provided by BWSR, provide a copy of the Transaction Form to Withdraw Credits 

to the Buyer and forward the same to the BWSR along with the check for the withdrawal fee and stewardship 

fee. 

 

6. Buyer has applied or will apply to Eureka Township (Local Government Unit (LGU) or other 

regulatory authority) for approval of a replacement plan utilizing the Credits as the means of replacing 

impacted wetlands.  If the LGU has not approved the Buyer’s application for a replacement plan utilizing the 

Credits by the Closing Date, and no postponement of the Closing Date has been agreed to by Buyer and 

Seller in writing, then either Buyer or Seller may cancel this Agreement by giving written notice to the other.  

In this case, Seller shall return Buyer’s earnest money, and neither Buyer nor Seller shall have any further 

obligations under this Agreement.  If the LGU has approved the replacement plan and the Seller is ready to 

proceed with the sale on the Closing Date, but Buyer fails to proceed, then the Seller may retain the earnest 

money as liquidated damages. 

 

 

___________________________________   ___________________________________ 
(Signature of Seller)                  (Date)   (Signature of Buyer)                    (Date) 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:  
 
/s/ Brian J. Wisdorf        3/6/2025       
Assistant Dakota County Attorney/Date 
KS-25-130 
 

Docusign Envelope ID: 4613FD15-CD4B-4FC3-A9D2-584B38B141D0

03/06/2025 | 3:04 PM CST

Docusign Envelope ID: B858923D-BF5D-4F34-877C-7466A4AF7B77

03/06/2025 | 3:17 PM CST

11



MEMORANDUM 
To:  Board Members, Eureka Township 

From: David Holmen, Senior Wetland/GIS Coordinator - Dakota County SWCD 

Cc:  Clerk, Eureka Township 
Ashley Gallagher, District Manager – Dakota County SWCD 

Date: April 02, 2025  

Subject: Living Waters Church and Miller Properties WCA Violation 
 
Wetland Violations have been identified on two adjacent properties owned by the Living Waters Baptist 
Church and Joe Miller located at 22222 and 22260 Dodd Blvd, Lakeville, MN 55044.  Under delegated 
authority from Eureka Township, the Dakota County Soil and Water Conservation District (SWCD) provides 
administrative tasks and certain decisions pursuant to the Minnesota Wetland Conservation Act (WCA) 
administered by the Minnesota Board of Water and Soil Resources (BWSR).   This delegation authority 
however does not authorize the SWCD to make decisions on wetland violation reparations.   

As background, the SWCD received a wetland determination request in August from Joe Miller for a 
proposed shed in the SE corner of the Living Waters property.  SWCD reviewed the project area for wetland 
information and determined wetland data resources did not align with current aerial photo signatures.  
SWCD and the BWSR wetland specialist met virtually to review aerial photos and identified potential fill 
activities in the project area that extended south onto Joe Miller’s property.  It was also determined at that 
time that two additional wetlands on Joe Miller’s property had potential fill activity.  SWCD notified Mr. 
Miller that a wetland delineation would be necessary for the proposed shed project area and that a site 
investigation would also be needed to review the potential wetland violations on both properties. 

The following administrative tasks have occurred as it relates to the requested determination and 
subsequent identified Wetland Violations:  

August 07, 2024 SWCD received a wetland determination request from Joe Miller for the SE corner of 
the Living Waters Baptist Church property for a proposed shed location. 

August 09, 2024 SWCD and BWSR met virtually to review recent aerial photos and identified potential 
fill activity in the project area that extended south onto the Miller property.  Two 
additional potential wetland fill activities were also identified on the Miller property.  
A prior wetland determination for the Miller property was identified in SWCD files 
(see attached).  

September 09, 2024 An incomplete wetland boundary application was submitted by Living Waters Baptist 
Church for the proposed shed location.  The application fee was not submitted.  A 
potential violation was also identified in the project area affecting building permit 
approval from the Township.    

12



September 09, 2024 SWCD met on site with BWSR, DNR Conservation Officer, and applicant 
representatives to review the wetland boundary delineation in the SE corner of the 
Living Waters Baptist Church property and a potential violation in this same area that 
extended south onto the Miller property.  The two additional potential wetland 
violations on the Miller property were also reviewed. 

October 21, 2024 SWCD and BWSR met with the applicant’s representative virtually to review all three 
violation areas to discuss methods to determine extent of wetland impacts.   

October 22, 2024 SWCD provided a summary to the TEP via e-mail documenting the methodology and 
results determining extent of wetland impacts. (attached). 

November 14, 2024 The TEP approved a findings of fact for each property regarding the wetland violation 
investigations (attached) and concluded restoration was not possible or prudent due 
to an active business operating in same location. 

January 10, 2025 SWCD issued Replacement Orders to the applicant for replacement at a 4:1 
replacement ratio via purchasing bank credits for each property as outlined in the 
SWCD e-mail summary dated October 22, 2024 (attached) to include 0.0247 acre of 
wetland impact and the use of 0.0988 acre of wetland bank credits for the Living 
Waters Baptish Church property and 0.2852 acre of wetland impact and the use of 
1.1408 acre of wetland bank credits for the Miller property both from within Bank 
Service Area 8 as defined under the WCA.   

January 17, 2025 Replacement Orders were served to the applicant by DNR Conservation Officer to be 
complied with by April 15, 2025. 

March 13, 2025 The Applicant’s representative submitted a complete replacement plan application as 
noted in the Replacement Order to purchase credits for the wetland violations. 

March 13, 2025 SWCD noticed the replacement plan application with comments due April 4, 2025. 

 
Summary/Recommendation 
 
Credits have been purchased in full for each violation as detailed in the Replacement Orders and purchase 
agreements are enclosed.  SWCD recommends the Township Board make a motion to approve the 
replacement plan application for purchasing bank credits for the wetland violations.  Upon approval, SWCD 
will submit Credit Withdrawals to BWSR and once confirmed, issue Certificate of Satisfactory Completion 
forms to DNR to close the Replacement Orders for the wetland violations. 
 
Enclosures: 
 
• Prior SWCD Wetland Determination 
• SWCD Summary E-mail Detailing Impacts 
• TEP Approved Findings of Facts 
• Replacement Orders 
• Credit Purchase Agreements  
• Standard Credit Withdrawals 

       

13



14



1

Holmen, David

From: Holmen, David
Sent: Tuesday, October 22, 2024 2:47 PM
To: Gallagher, Ashley; Jed Chesnut
Subject: Living Waters/Miller Property Impacts Update

After reviewing the Miller Property impacts yesterday with Jed and Ken Arndt we discussed a method to evaluate the Living Waters impact at the northeast corner of the 
berm slope where fill soil material was identified over wetland soil during the on‐site TEP using the contour change and existing delineation. 

In the below graphic at left, Ken’s current delineation is in yellow, and the 2011 contours are shown – note the 990 at south end of calculated filled area in turquoise on 
property boundary overlain on 2000 aerial.  At right, the 2021 contours are shown – note 990 is now along north end of calculated fill area.  I calculated the fill area 
based on the 990 contour change outside of the existing delineation boundary and split for the two properties. 

15



2

Additional fill was placed inside the current wetland boundary in 2022 for what appears to 

be an inlet rock check.

16



3

2018 Apr          2022 May 

Area B: SW Wetland 

2020 Apr    2023 Apr 

The Miller property had two additional areas of impact as noted below: 

Area C: central wetland  

17



4

Living Waters        0.0247      NA    NA     0.0247      0.0988 ac 
Miller Property     0.0188      0.1727   0.0937    0.2852      1.1408 ac 

DAVID HOLMEN, CMWP, GISP 
 

SENIOR WETLAND/GIS COORDINATOR   l   Dakota County SWCD  
Office: (651) 480‐7791   l   david.holmen@co.dakota.mn.us 
4100 220th Street West  l   Farmington, MN 55024   l   www.dakotaswcd.org 

Partners in Land & Water Conservation   

Total Impacts 

Location           Area A      Area B     Area C     Total     Replacement 4:1 

18



 

Minnesota Wetland Conservation Act  
Technical Evaluation Panel Form 

This form can be used to document TEP findings and recommendations related to WCA decisions, 
determinations, enforcement and pre-application reviews.  

Local Government Unit:  Eureka Township                                                                                      County:   Dakota     
Landowner/Applicant: Living Waters Baptish Church    
Agent/Representative(s):  MNR, Ken Arndt                                 
Project Name:  Living Waters Church Wetland Delineation Site Review    
 Project No. (if any): 24-EUR-149 
Project Location:  22222 Dodd Blvd, Lakeville, MN 55044               

 

Purpose of TEP Findings/Recommendation - check all that apply and describe 
☐ Pre-application review      ☐ Application Review (related to WCA Decision)                                     
☐ Local Government Road Wetland Replacement Program Eligibility   ☐ WCA Determination Request    
☒ Other (specify):  Wetland Delineation Review and Potential Violation Investigation                                                      
Describe:                                                         

  

Meeting Type – check all that apply and specify dates as applicable 
☐ In-Person Meeting(s), Date(s):                                           ☒ Electronic Exchanges: 08/09/24, 10/21/24                                    
☒ Onsite Review(s), Date(s): 09/09/24                                ☐ Other (specify):                                           

 

Findings and Recommendations 
The SWCD received a wetland determination request from applicant representatives on 08/07/24 for a 
proposed shed.  SWCD reviewed the project area for wetland information and determined wetland data 
resources did not align with current aerial photo signatures.  SWCD and BWSR met virtually on 08/09/24 to 
review recent historical aerial photos and identified potential fill activities in the project area.  SWCD notified 
the applicant representative on 08/28/24 that a wetland delineation would be needed for the project area.  
The SWCD met on site with BWSR, DNR CO and applicant representatives on 09/09/24 to review the wetland 
delineation in SE corner of parcel for a proposed 100x60ft shed.  Fill material was observed pushed into SE 
corner of parcel in 2021 aerial photo from adjacent parcel to south.  An on-site soil pit at base of fill slope on 
southwest edge of wetland indicated fill material over native hydric soils with heavy redox concentrations at 
8-10 inches below fill material line.  The TEP concluded that restoration was not possible or prudent due to an 
active business operating in same location.  The TEP determined the delineated wetland extended further 
west underneath fill slope and followed-up with applicant representative virtually on 10/21/24 to calculate 
areas of impact using aerial imagery and pre-fill (2011) and post-fill (2022) 1-foot contour data.  Additional fill 
was also observed in 2022 aerial photo inside the current delineated wetland boundary for an apparent inlet 
rock check.  Fill activity inside the determined wetland boundary totaled 0.0247 acres. 

 

☐ Attachment(s) (specify):                                             
 

DNR Protected Waters and Shoreland Protection Zone 
Will the project/activity affect DNR public waters, DNR public waters wetlands or wetlands within the 
shoreland protection zone?      ☐ Yes     ☒ No    If yes, DNR representative is a member of the TEP. 

 

Signatures 

19



☒ LGU TEP Member:  Ashley Gallagher                        Agree with Findings & Recommendations:  ☒ Yes     ☐ No     

                     
Signature:                                                                                                                                Date:    11/14/24                                  
                                                                                                                                      
☒ SWCD TEP Member:  David Holmen                      Agree with Findings & Recommendations:  ☒ Yes     ☐ No     
 
Signature:                                                                                                                                 Date:  11/13/24                                 

☒ BWSR TEP Member:  Jed Chesnut                         Agree with Findings & Recommendations:  ☒ Yes     ☐ No     
 
Signature:                                                                                                                                  Date:        11/14/24                                      

 

20



Minnesota Wetland Conservation Act 
Technical Evaluation Panel Form 

This form can be used to document TEP findings and recommendations related to WCA decisions, 
determinations, enforcement and pre-application reviews.  

Local Government Unit:  Eureka Township      County:   Dakota 
Landowner/Applicant:  Joe Miller   
Agent/Representative(s):  MNR, Ken Arndt     
Project Name:  Miller Property 
 Project No. (if any): 24-EUR-149 
Project Location:  22260 Dodd Blvd, Lakeville, MN 55044 

Purpose of TEP Findings/Recommendation - check all that apply and describe 
☐ Pre-application review      ☐ Application Review (related to WCA Decision)
☐ Local Government Road Wetland Replacement Program Eligibility   ☐ WCA Determination Request
☒ Other (specify):  Potential Violation Investigation
Describe:

Meeting Type – check all that apply and specify dates as applicable 
☐ In-Person Meeting(s), Date(s): ☒ Electronic Exchanges: 08/09/24, 10/21/24
☒ Onsite Review(s), Date(s):  09/09/24 ☐ Other (specify):

Findings and Recommendations 
The SWCD received a wetland determination request from the landowner on 08/07/24 for a proposed shed 
on the adjacent parcel along his property line.  While reviewing wetland information for the adjacent shed 
proposal, SWCD observed potential fill activity from recent aerial photos on the landowner property.  SWCD 
reviewed historical files and identified a wetland determination for the landowner property provided to him 
in 2016 identifying two wetland boundaries on the property (see attached).  SWCD and BWSR met virtually on 
08/09/24 to review recent historical aerial photos and identified potential fill activities inside both wetland 
boundaries.  SWCD notified the landowner on 08/28/24 that a potential wetland violation had occurred on 
the property.  The SWCD met on site with BWSR, DNR CO and applicant representatives on 09/09/24 to 
review the two wetland boundaries in the SW corner and center of the property.  Fill material was observed 
pushed into SW wetland boundary in 2023 aerial photo and into center wetland boundary in 2022 aerial 
photo.  An on-site review of each wetland boundary confirmed fill material at higher elevations inside each 
wetland boundary.  The TEP concluded that restoration was not possible or prudent due to an active business 
operating in same location.  The TEP determined each wetland extended further underneath fill slopes and 
followed-up with applicant representative virtually on 10/21/24 to calculate areas of impact using aerial 
imagery.  Fill activity inside the determined wetland boundaries totaled 0.2852 acres.     

☒ Attachment(s) (specify):  2016 SWCD Wetland Determination

DNR Protected Waters and Shoreland Protection Zone 
Will the project/activity affect DNR public waters, DNR public waters wetlands or wetlands within the 
shoreland protection zone?      ☐ Yes     ☒ No    If yes, DNR representative is a member of the TEP. 

21



 

Signatures 
☒ LGU TEP Member:  Ashley Gallagher                      Agree with Findings & Recommendations:  ☒ Yes     ☐ No     

                     
Signature:                                                                                                                                Date:     11/14/24                                 
                                                                                                                                      
☒ SWCD TEP Member:  David Holmen                      Agree with Findings & Recommendations:  ☒ Yes     ☐ No     
 
Signature:                                                                                                                                  Date:  11/13/24                                      

☒ BWSR TEP Member:  Jed Chesnut                         Agree with Findings & Recommendations:  ☒ Yes     ☐ No     
 
Signature:                                                                                                                                  Date:             11/14/24                                 

 

22



23



24



25



26



27



28



 
PURCHASE AGREEMENT  

FOR 
WETLAND BANKING CREDITS 

 

THIS AGREEMENT is between Dakota County (Seller) and Living Waters Baptist Church (Buyer). 

 

1. Seller agrees to sell to Buyer, and Buyer agrees to buy from Seller, the wetland banking credits 

(Credits) listed below: 

*AGC is for Ag bank credits and SWC is for standard bank credits.  

 

2. Seller represents and warrants as follows: 

a) The Credits are deposited in an account in the Minnesota Wetland Bank administered by the 

Minnesota Board of Water and Soil Resources (BWSR) pursuant to Minn. Rules Chapter  

8420.0700-.0760. 

b) Seller owns the Credits and has the right to sell the Credits to Buyer. 

 

3. Buyer will pay Seller a total of $4,926.86 for the Credits, as follows: 

a) $985.37 as earnest money, in the form of a cashier’s check payable to Dakota County 

Treasurer, 1590 Hwy 55, Hastings, MN 55033 to be paid when this Agreement is signed; and 

b) The balance of $3,941.49 in the form of a cashier’s check payable to Dakota County 

Treasurer, 1590 Hwy 55, Hastings, MN 55033 to be paid on the Closing Date listed below. 

 

 

Credits to be Sold 
Credit 

Subgroup 
Credit Type 
SWC or AGC Wetland Type/Plant Community Type Cost per Credit Credit Amounts 

A SWC 2 – Fresh Wet Meadow $49,867 0.0988 
     
     
     
     

Per Credit Withdrawal Fee by BSA* 
Enter the Withdrawal Fee 

for the BSA of the account: 

Total 
Cost: $4,926.86 

Total 
Credits: 0.0988  SWC AGC  SWC AGC 

BSA 1    $520 $270 BSA 6     $1,083 $586 Withdrawal Fee  x total credits = fee 
BSA 2    $371 $191 BSA 7     $1,992 $1,060 $2,577 Withdrawal Fee: $254.60 
BSA 3    $725 $389 BSA 8     $2,577 $1,348 Easement Stewardship Fee: Easement Stewardship fee x total credits = fee 

BSA 4    $1,412 $724 BSA 9     $2,628 $1,332 $302 Stewardship Fee: $29.84 

BSA 5    $685 $367 BSA 10   $3,099 $1,580  Total Fees: $284.44 

Grand Total: $5,211.30 

Docusign Envelope ID: F30FAC51-800A-4953-98E1-39A5682708F1Docusign Envelope ID: E137F520-30D7-4895-8D2C-1C7DC3F5B576

29



 

4.  Buyer, agrees to pay a withdrawal fee of $254.60 to the State of Minnesota based on the per credit fee 

of $2,577 for Bank Service Area 8 and a stewardship fee of $29.84 based on the per credit fee of $302. At 

the Closing Date, Buyer will execute a check made out for this amount, payable to the Board of Water and 

Soil Resources.   

 

5. The closing of the purchase and sale shall occur on or before April 1, 2025 (Closing Date) at a place 

to be determined or by mail.  The Closing Date and location may be changed by written consent of both 

parties.  Upon payment of the balance of the purchase price, Seller will sign a fully executed Transaction 

Form to Withdraw Credits provided by BWSR, provide a copy of the Transaction Form to Withdraw Credits 

to the Buyer and forward the same to the BWSR along with the check for the withdrawal fee and stewardship 

fee. 

 

6. Buyer has applied or will apply to Eureka Township (Local Government Unit (LGU) or other 

regulatory authority) for approval of a replacement plan utilizing the Credits as the means of replacing 

impacted wetlands.  If the LGU has not approved the Buyer’s application for a replacement plan utilizing the 

Credits by the Closing Date, and no postponement of the Closing Date has been agreed to by Buyer and 

Seller in writing, then either Buyer or Seller may cancel this Agreement by giving written notice to the other.  

In this case, Seller shall return Buyer’s earnest money, and neither Buyer nor Seller shall have any further 

obligations under this Agreement.  If the LGU has approved the replacement plan and the Seller is ready to 

proceed with the sale on the Closing Date, but Buyer fails to proceed, then the Seller may retain the earnest 

money as liquidated damages. 

 

 

___________________________________   ___________________________________ 
(Signature of Seller)                  (Date)   (Signature of Buyer)                    (Date) 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:  
 
/s/ Brian J. Wisdorf        3/6/2025       
Assistant Dakota County Attorney/Date 
KS-25-131 
 

Docusign Envelope ID: F30FAC51-800A-4953-98E1-39A5682708F1

03/06/2025 | 1:03 PM PST

Docusign Envelope ID: E137F520-30D7-4895-8D2C-1C7DC3F5B576

03/06/2025 | 3:22 PM CST

30



Certificate Of Completion
Envelope Id: F30FAC51-800A-4953-98E1-39A5682708F1 Status: Completed

Subject: Complete with Docusign: Wetland Banking Credits (Living Waters Baptist Church) - #DCA22671

Source Envelope: 

Document Pages: 2 Signatures: 1 Envelope Originator: 

Certificate Pages: 5 Initials: 0 Sara Glasby

AutoNav: Enabled

EnvelopeId Stamping: Enabled

Time Zone: (UTC-06:00) Central Time (US & Canada)

1590 Highway 55

Hastings, MN  55033

Sara.glasby@co.dakota.mn.us

IP Address: 35.148.61.138  

Record Tracking
Status: Original

             3/6/2025 11:09:07 AM

Holder: Sara Glasby

             Sara.glasby@co.dakota.mn.us

Location: DocuSign

Security Appliance Status: Connected Pool: StateLocal

Storage Appliance Status: Connected Pool: Dakota County Location: Docusign

Signer Events Signature Timestamp
Scott Peterson

scott@livingwatersmn.com

Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None)

Signature Adoption: Pre-selected Style

Using IP Address: 3.144.210.20

Sent: 3/6/2025 11:10:47 AM

Viewed: 3/6/2025 12:44:43 PM 

Signed: 3/6/2025 3:03:53 PM

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Accepted: 3/6/2025 12:44:43 PM
      ID: faa21536-467e-4e23-b8be-ace84fe34f5c

In Person Signer Events Signature Timestamp

Editor Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Agent Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Intermediary Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Certified Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Carbon Copy Events Status Timestamp
Ken Arndt

Ken.arndt@mnrinc.us

Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None)

Sent: 3/6/2025 11:10:47 AM

Viewed: 3/6/2025 3:05:08 PM 

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Not Offered via Docusign

Sara Glasby

sara.glasby@co.dakota.mn.us

Farmer

Dakota County

Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None)

Sent: 3/6/2025 11:10:48 AM

Resent: 3/6/2025 3:03:55 PM

Viewed: 3/6/2025 3:17:23 PM 

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Accepted: 7/13/2023 7:31:39 AM
      ID: 08a42d5a-57da-4d05-80f7-d9e89d313aa3

Docusign Envelope ID: E137F520-30D7-4895-8D2C-1C7DC3F5B576

31



Witness Events Signature Timestamp

Notary Events Signature Timestamp

Envelope Summary Events Status Timestamps
Envelope Sent Hashed/Encrypted 3/6/2025 11:10:48 AM

Certified Delivered Security Checked 3/6/2025 12:44:43 PM

Signing Complete Security Checked 3/6/2025 3:03:53 PM

Completed Security Checked 3/6/2025 3:03:53 PM

Payment Events Status Timestamps

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure

Docusign Envelope ID: E137F520-30D7-4895-8D2C-1C7DC3F5B576

32



ELECTRONIC RECORD AND SIGNATURE DISCLOSURE  
From time to time, Dakota County (we, us or Company) may be required by law to provide to 

you certain written notices or disclosures. Described below are the terms and conditions for 

providing to you such notices and disclosures electronically through your DocuSign, Inc. 

(DocuSign) Express user account. Please read the information below carefully and thoroughly, 

and if you can access this information electronically to your satisfaction and agree to these terms 

and conditions, please confirm your agreement by clicking the 'I agree' button at the bottom of 

this document.  

Getting paper copies  
At any time, you may request from us a paper copy of any record provided or made available 

electronically to you by us. For such copies, as long as you are an authorized user of the 

DocuSign system you will have the ability to download and print any documents we send to you 

through your DocuSign user account for a limited period of time (usually 30 days) after such 

documents are first sent to you. After such time, if you wish for us to send you paper copies of 

any such documents from our office to you, you will be charged a $0.00 per-page fee. You may 

request delivery of such paper copies from us by following the procedure described below.  

Withdrawing your consent  
If you decide to receive notices and disclosures from us electronically, you may at any time 

change your mind and tell us that thereafter you want to receive required notices and disclosures 

only in paper format. How you must inform us of your decision to receive future notices and 

disclosure in paper format and withdraw your consent to receive notices and disclosures 

electronically is described below.  

Consequences of changing your mind  
If you elect to receive required notices and disclosures only in paper format, it will slow the 

speed at which we can complete certain steps in transactions with you and delivering services to 

you because we will need first to send the required notices or disclosures to you in paper format, 

and then wait until we receive back from you your acknowledgment of your receipt of such 

paper notices or disclosures. To indicate to us that you are changing your mind, you must 

withdraw your consent using the DocuSign 'Withdraw Consent' form on the signing page of your 

DocuSign account. This will indicate to us that you have withdrawn your consent to receive 

required notices and disclosures electronically from us and you will no longer be able to use your 

DocuSign Express user account to receive required notices and consents electronically from us 

or to sign electronically documents from us.  

All notices and disclosures will be sent to you electronically  
Unless you tell us otherwise in accordance with the procedures described herein, we will provide 

electronically to you through your DocuSign user account all required notices, disclosures, 

authorizations, acknowledgements, and other documents that are required to be provided or made 

available to you during the course of our relationship with you. To reduce the chance of you 

inadvertently not receiving any notice or disclosure, we prefer to provide all of the required 

notices and disclosures to you by the same method and to the same address that you have given 

us. Thus, you can receive all the disclosures and notices electronically or in paper format through 

the paper mail delivery system. If you do not agree with this process, please let us know as 

described below. Please also see the paragraph immediately above that describes the 

consequences of your electing not to receive delivery of the notices and disclosures 

electronically from us.  

How to contact Dakota County:  

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure created on: 2/22/2017 3:37:08 PM
Parties agreed to: Scott Peterson, Sara Glasby

Docusign Envelope ID: E137F520-30D7-4895-8D2C-1C7DC3F5B576

33



You may contact us to let us know of your changes as to how we may contact you electronically, 

to request paper copies of certain information from us, and to withdraw your prior consent to 

receive notices and disclosures electronically as follows: 

To contact us by email send messages to: bruce.peters@co.dakota.mn.us 

To advise Dakota County of your new e-mail address  

To let us know of a change in your e-mail address where we should send notices and disclosures 

electronically to you, you must send an email message to us at bruce.peters@co.dakota.mn.us 

and in the body of such request you must state: your previous e-mail address, your new e-mail 

address.  We do not require any other information from you to change your email address..   

In addition, you must notify DocuSign, Inc to arrange for your new email address to be reflected 

in your DocuSign account by following the process for changing e-mail in DocuSign.  

To request paper copies from Dakota County  
To request delivery from us of paper copies of the notices and disclosures previously provided 

by us to you electronically, you must send us an e-mail to bruce.peters@co.dakota.mn.us and in 

the body of such request you must state your e-mail address, full name, US Postal address, and 

telephone number. We will bill you for any fees at that time, if any.  

To withdraw your consent with Dakota County  

To inform us that you no longer want to receive future notices and disclosures in electronic 

format you may: 

i. decline to sign a document from within your DocuSign account, and on the subsequent 

page, select the check-box indicating you wish to withdraw your consent, or you may; 

ii. send us an e-mail to bruce.peters@co.dakota.mn.us and in the body of such request 

you must state your e-mail, full name, IS Postal Address, telephone number, and account 

number. We do not need any other information from you to withdraw consent..  The 

consequences of your withdrawing consent for online documents will be that transactions 

may take a longer time to process..  

Required hardware and software  

Operating Systems: Windows2000? or WindowsXP? 

Browsers (for 

SENDERS): 
Internet Explorer 6.0? or above 

Browsers (for 

SIGNERS): 
Internet Explorer 6.0?, Mozilla FireFox 1.0, NetScape 7.2 (or above) 

Email: Access to a valid email account 

Screen Resolution: 800 x 600 minimum 

Enabled Security 

Settings: 
  Allow per session cookies 

Docusign Envelope ID: E137F520-30D7-4895-8D2C-1C7DC3F5B576

34



  Users accessing the internet behind a Proxy Server must enable HTTP 

1.1 settings via proxy connection 

** These minimum requirements are subject to change. If these requirements change, we will 

provide you with an email message at the email address we have on file for you at that time 

providing you with the revised hardware and software requirements, at which time you will have 

the right to withdraw your consent.  

Acknowledging your access and consent to receive materials electronically  
To confirm to us that you can access this information electronically, which will be similar to 

other electronic notices and disclosures that we will provide to you, please verify that you were 

able to read this electronic disclosure and that you also were able to print on paper or 

electronically save this page for your future reference and access or that you were able to e-mail 

this disclosure and consent to an address where you will be able to print on paper or save it for 

your future reference and access. Further, if you consent to receiving notices and disclosures 

exclusively in electronic format on the terms and conditions described above, please let us know 

by clicking the 'I agree' button below.  

By checking the 'I Agree' box, I confirm that:  

 I can access and read this Electronic CONSENT TO ELECTRONIC RECEIPT OF 

ELECTRONIC RECORD AND SIGNATURE DISCLOSURES document; and 

 I can print on paper the disclosure or save or send the disclosure to a place where I can 

print it, for future reference and access; and 

 Until or unless I notify Dakota County as described above, I consent to receive from 

exclusively through electronic means all notices, disclosures, authorizations, 

acknowledgements, and other documents that are required to be provided or made 

available to me by  Dakota County during the course of my relationship with you. 

Docusign Envelope ID: E137F520-30D7-4895-8D2C-1C7DC3F5B576

35



Certificate Of Completion
Envelope Id: E137F520-30D7-4895-8D2C-1C7DC3F5B576 Status: Completed

Subject: Complete with Docusign: Wetland Banking Credits (Living Waters Baptist Church) - #DCA22671

Source Envelope: 

Document Pages: 7 Signatures: 1 Envelope Originator: 

Certificate Pages: 4 Initials: 0 Sara Glasby

AutoNav: Enabled

EnvelopeId Stamping: Enabled

Time Zone: (UTC-06:00) Central Time (US & Canada)

1590 Highway 55

Hastings, MN  55033

Sara.glasby@co.dakota.mn.us

IP Address: 35.148.61.138  

Record Tracking
Status: Original

             3/6/2025 3:18:11 PM

Holder: Sara Glasby

             Sara.glasby@co.dakota.mn.us

Location: DocuSign

Security Appliance Status: Connected Pool: StateLocal

Storage Appliance Status: Connected Pool: Dakota County Location: Docusign

Signer Events Signature Timestamp
Travis Thiel

travis.thiel@co.dakota.mn.us

Administrator

Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None) Signature Adoption: Pre-selected Style

Using IP Address: 207.171.99.1

Sent: 3/6/2025 3:19:03 PM

Viewed: 3/6/2025 3:22:29 PM 

Signed: 3/6/2025 3:22:39 PM

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Accepted: 3/6/2025 3:22:29 PM
      ID: fc90de89-041e-40fb-9f0d-810758dd7702

In Person Signer Events Signature Timestamp

Editor Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Agent Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Intermediary Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Certified Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Carbon Copy Events Status Timestamp

Witness Events Signature Timestamp

Notary Events Signature Timestamp

Envelope Summary Events Status Timestamps
Envelope Sent Hashed/Encrypted 3/6/2025 3:19:04 PM

Certified Delivered Security Checked 3/6/2025 3:22:29 PM

Signing Complete Security Checked 3/6/2025 3:22:39 PM

Completed Security Checked 3/6/2025 3:22:39 PM

Payment Events Status Timestamps

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure

36



ELECTRONIC RECORD AND SIGNATURE DISCLOSURE  
From time to time, Dakota County (we, us or Company) may be required by law to provide to 

you certain written notices or disclosures. Described below are the terms and conditions for 

providing to you such notices and disclosures electronically through your DocuSign, Inc. 

(DocuSign) Express user account. Please read the information below carefully and thoroughly, 

and if you can access this information electronically to your satisfaction and agree to these terms 

and conditions, please confirm your agreement by clicking the 'I agree' button at the bottom of 

this document.  

Getting paper copies  
At any time, you may request from us a paper copy of any record provided or made available 

electronically to you by us. For such copies, as long as you are an authorized user of the 

DocuSign system you will have the ability to download and print any documents we send to you 

through your DocuSign user account for a limited period of time (usually 30 days) after such 

documents are first sent to you. After such time, if you wish for us to send you paper copies of 

any such documents from our office to you, you will be charged a $0.00 per-page fee. You may 

request delivery of such paper copies from us by following the procedure described below.  

Withdrawing your consent  
If you decide to receive notices and disclosures from us electronically, you may at any time 

change your mind and tell us that thereafter you want to receive required notices and disclosures 

only in paper format. How you must inform us of your decision to receive future notices and 

disclosure in paper format and withdraw your consent to receive notices and disclosures 

electronically is described below.  

Consequences of changing your mind  
If you elect to receive required notices and disclosures only in paper format, it will slow the 

speed at which we can complete certain steps in transactions with you and delivering services to 

you because we will need first to send the required notices or disclosures to you in paper format, 

and then wait until we receive back from you your acknowledgment of your receipt of such 

paper notices or disclosures. To indicate to us that you are changing your mind, you must 

withdraw your consent using the DocuSign 'Withdraw Consent' form on the signing page of your 

DocuSign account. This will indicate to us that you have withdrawn your consent to receive 

required notices and disclosures electronically from us and you will no longer be able to use your 

DocuSign Express user account to receive required notices and consents electronically from us 

or to sign electronically documents from us.  

All notices and disclosures will be sent to you electronically  
Unless you tell us otherwise in accordance with the procedures described herein, we will provide 

electronically to you through your DocuSign user account all required notices, disclosures, 

authorizations, acknowledgements, and other documents that are required to be provided or made 

available to you during the course of our relationship with you. To reduce the chance of you 

inadvertently not receiving any notice or disclosure, we prefer to provide all of the required 

notices and disclosures to you by the same method and to the same address that you have given 

us. Thus, you can receive all the disclosures and notices electronically or in paper format through 

the paper mail delivery system. If you do not agree with this process, please let us know as 

described below. Please also see the paragraph immediately above that describes the 

consequences of your electing not to receive delivery of the notices and disclosures 

electronically from us.  

How to contact Dakota County:  

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure created on: 2/22/2017 3:37:08 PM
Parties agreed to: Travis Thiel

37



You may contact us to let us know of your changes as to how we may contact you electronically, 

to request paper copies of certain information from us, and to withdraw your prior consent to 

receive notices and disclosures electronically as follows: 

To contact us by email send messages to: bruce.peters@co.dakota.mn.us 

To advise Dakota County of your new e-mail address  

To let us know of a change in your e-mail address where we should send notices and disclosures 

electronically to you, you must send an email message to us at bruce.peters@co.dakota.mn.us 

and in the body of such request you must state: your previous e-mail address, your new e-mail 

address.  We do not require any other information from you to change your email address..   

In addition, you must notify DocuSign, Inc to arrange for your new email address to be reflected 

in your DocuSign account by following the process for changing e-mail in DocuSign.  

To request paper copies from Dakota County  
To request delivery from us of paper copies of the notices and disclosures previously provided 

by us to you electronically, you must send us an e-mail to bruce.peters@co.dakota.mn.us and in 

the body of such request you must state your e-mail address, full name, US Postal address, and 

telephone number. We will bill you for any fees at that time, if any.  

To withdraw your consent with Dakota County  

To inform us that you no longer want to receive future notices and disclosures in electronic 

format you may: 

i. decline to sign a document from within your DocuSign account, and on the subsequent 

page, select the check-box indicating you wish to withdraw your consent, or you may; 

ii. send us an e-mail to bruce.peters@co.dakota.mn.us and in the body of such request 

you must state your e-mail, full name, IS Postal Address, telephone number, and account 

number. We do not need any other information from you to withdraw consent..  The 

consequences of your withdrawing consent for online documents will be that transactions 

may take a longer time to process..  

Required hardware and software  

Operating Systems: Windows2000? or WindowsXP? 

Browsers (for 

SENDERS): 
Internet Explorer 6.0? or above 

Browsers (for 

SIGNERS): 
Internet Explorer 6.0?, Mozilla FireFox 1.0, NetScape 7.2 (or above) 

Email: Access to a valid email account 

Screen Resolution: 800 x 600 minimum 

Enabled Security 

Settings: 
  Allow per session cookies 

38



  Users accessing the internet behind a Proxy Server must enable HTTP 

1.1 settings via proxy connection 

** These minimum requirements are subject to change. If these requirements change, we will 

provide you with an email message at the email address we have on file for you at that time 

providing you with the revised hardware and software requirements, at which time you will have 

the right to withdraw your consent.  

Acknowledging your access and consent to receive materials electronically  
To confirm to us that you can access this information electronically, which will be similar to 

other electronic notices and disclosures that we will provide to you, please verify that you were 

able to read this electronic disclosure and that you also were able to print on paper or 

electronically save this page for your future reference and access or that you were able to e-mail 

this disclosure and consent to an address where you will be able to print on paper or save it for 

your future reference and access. Further, if you consent to receiving notices and disclosures 

exclusively in electronic format on the terms and conditions described above, please let us know 

by clicking the 'I agree' button below.  

By checking the 'I Agree' box, I confirm that:  

 I can access and read this Electronic CONSENT TO ELECTRONIC RECEIPT OF 

ELECTRONIC RECORD AND SIGNATURE DISCLOSURES document; and 

 I can print on paper the disclosure or save or send the disclosure to a place where I can 

print it, for future reference and access; and 

 Until or unless I notify Dakota County as described above, I consent to receive from 

exclusively through electronic means all notices, disclosures, authorizations, 

acknowledgements, and other documents that are required to be provided or made 

available to me by  Dakota County during the course of my relationship with you. 

39



 
PURCHASE AGREEMENT  

FOR 
WETLAND BANKING CREDITS 

 

THIS AGREEMENT is made between Dakota County (Seller) and Joseph Miller (Buyer). 

 

1. Seller agrees to sell to Buyer, and Buyer agrees to buy from Seller, the wetland banking credits 

(Credits) listed below: 

*AGC is for Ag bank credits and SWC is for standard bank credits.  

 

2. Seller represents and warrants as follows: 

a) The Credits are deposited in an account in the Minnesota Wetland Bank administered by the 

Minnesota Board of Water and Soil Resources (BWSR) pursuant to Minn. Rules Chapter  

8420.0700-.0760. 

b) Seller owns the Credits and has the right to sell the Credits to Buyer. 

 

3. Buyer will pay Seller a total of $56,888.27 for the Credits, as follows: 

a) $11,377.65 as earnest money, in the form of a cashier’s check payable to Dakota County 

Treasurer, 1590 Hwy 55, Hastings, MN 55033 to be paid when this Agreement is signed; and 

 

b) The balance of $45,510.62 in the form of a cashier’s check payable to Dakota County 

Treasurer, 1590 Hwy 55, Hastings, MN 55033 to be paid on the Closing Date listed below. 

 

Credits to be Sold 
Credit 

Subgroup 
Credit Type 
SWC or AGC Wetland Type/Plant Community Type Cost per Credit Credit Amounts 

A SWC 2 – Fresh Wet Meadow $49,867 1.1408 
     
     
     
     

Per Credit Withdrawal Fee by BSA* 
Enter the Withdrawal Fee 

for the BSA of the account: 

Total 
Cost: $56,888.27 

Total 
Credits: 1.1408  SWC AGC  SWC AGC 

BSA 1    $520 $270 BSA 6     $1,083 $586 Withdrawal Fee  x total credits = fee 
BSA 2    $371 $191 BSA 7     $1,992 $1,060 $2,577 Withdrawal Fee: $2,939.84 
BSA 3    $725 $389 BSA 8     $2,577 $1,348 Easement Stewardship Fee: Easement Stewardship fee x total credits = fee 

BSA 4    $1,412 $724 BSA 9     $2,628 $1,332 $302 Stewardship Fee: $344.52 

BSA 5    $685 $367 BSA 10   $3,099 $1,580  Total Fees: $3,284.36 

Grand Total: $60,172.63 

Docusign Envelope ID: 4613FD15-CD4B-4FC3-A9D2-584B38B141D0Docusign Envelope ID: B858923D-BF5D-4F34-877C-7466A4AF7B77

40



 

4.  Buyer, agrees to pay a withdrawal fee of $2,939.84 to the State of Minnesota based on the per credit 

fee of $2,577 for Bank Service Area 8 and a stewardship fee of $344.52 based on the per credit fee of $302. 

At the Closing Date, Buyer will execute a check made out for this amount, payable to the Board of Water 

and Soil Resources.   

 

5. The closing of the purchase and sale shall occur on or before April 1, 2025 (Closing Date) at a place 

to be determined or by mail.  The Closing Date and location may be changed by written consent of both 

parties.  Upon payment of the balance of the purchase price, Seller will sign a fully executed Transaction 

Form to Withdraw Credits provided by BWSR, provide a copy of the Transaction Form to Withdraw Credits 

to the Buyer and forward the same to the BWSR along with the check for the withdrawal fee and stewardship 

fee. 

 

6. Buyer has applied or will apply to Eureka Township (Local Government Unit (LGU) or other 

regulatory authority) for approval of a replacement plan utilizing the Credits as the means of replacing 

impacted wetlands.  If the LGU has not approved the Buyer’s application for a replacement plan utilizing the 

Credits by the Closing Date, and no postponement of the Closing Date has been agreed to by Buyer and 

Seller in writing, then either Buyer or Seller may cancel this Agreement by giving written notice to the other.  

In this case, Seller shall return Buyer’s earnest money, and neither Buyer nor Seller shall have any further 

obligations under this Agreement.  If the LGU has approved the replacement plan and the Seller is ready to 

proceed with the sale on the Closing Date, but Buyer fails to proceed, then the Seller may retain the earnest 

money as liquidated damages. 

 

 

___________________________________   ___________________________________ 
(Signature of Seller)                  (Date)   (Signature of Buyer)                    (Date) 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:  
 
/s/ Brian J. Wisdorf        3/6/2025       
Assistant Dakota County Attorney/Date 
KS-25-130 
 

Docusign Envelope ID: 4613FD15-CD4B-4FC3-A9D2-584B38B141D0

03/06/2025 | 3:04 PM CST

Docusign Envelope ID: B858923D-BF5D-4F34-877C-7466A4AF7B77

03/06/2025 | 3:17 PM CST

41



Certificate Of Completion
Envelope Id: 4613FD15-CD4B-4FC3-A9D2-584B38B141D0 Status: Completed

Subject: Complete with Docusign: Wetland Banking Credits (Joseph Miller) - #DCA22670

Source Envelope: 

Document Pages: 2 Signatures: 1 Envelope Originator: 

Certificate Pages: 5 Initials: 0 Sara Glasby

AutoNav: Enabled

EnvelopeId Stamping: Enabled

Time Zone: (UTC-06:00) Central Time (US & Canada)

1590 Highway 55

Hastings, MN  55033

Sara.glasby@co.dakota.mn.us

IP Address: 35.148.61.138  

Record Tracking
Status: Original

             3/6/2025 10:51:48 AM

Holder: Sara Glasby

             Sara.glasby@co.dakota.mn.us

Location: DocuSign

Security Appliance Status: Connected Pool: StateLocal

Storage Appliance Status: Connected Pool: Dakota County Location: Docusign

Signer Events Signature Timestamp
Joseph Miller

joeyhmiller@mac.com

Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None)

Signature Adoption: Drawn on Device

Using IP Address: 50.124.207.130

Signed using mobile

Sent: 3/6/2025 10:56:51 AM

Viewed: 3/6/2025 2:30:02 PM 

Signed: 3/6/2025 3:04:00 PM

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Accepted: 3/6/2025 2:30:02 PM
      ID: 42015c35-54d4-4c8c-a87f-09bb6557b40f

In Person Signer Events Signature Timestamp

Editor Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Agent Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Intermediary Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Certified Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Carbon Copy Events Status Timestamp
Ken Arndt

Ken.arndt@mnrinc.us

Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None)

Sent: 3/6/2025 10:56:52 AM

Viewed: 3/6/2025 3:07:49 PM 

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Not Offered via Docusign

Sara Glasby

sara.glasby@co.dakota.mn.us

Farmer

Dakota County

Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None)

Sent: 3/6/2025 10:56:52 AM

Resent: 3/6/2025 3:04:02 PM

Viewed: 3/6/2025 3:14:05 PM 

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Accepted: 7/13/2023 7:31:39 AM
      ID: 08a42d5a-57da-4d05-80f7-d9e89d313aa3

Docusign Envelope ID: B858923D-BF5D-4F34-877C-7466A4AF7B77

42



Witness Events Signature Timestamp

Notary Events Signature Timestamp

Envelope Summary Events Status Timestamps
Envelope Sent Hashed/Encrypted 3/6/2025 10:56:52 AM

Certified Delivered Security Checked 3/6/2025 2:30:02 PM

Signing Complete Security Checked 3/6/2025 3:04:00 PM

Completed Security Checked 3/6/2025 3:04:00 PM

Payment Events Status Timestamps

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure

Docusign Envelope ID: B858923D-BF5D-4F34-877C-7466A4AF7B77

43



ELECTRONIC RECORD AND SIGNATURE DISCLOSURE  
From time to time, Dakota County (we, us or Company) may be required by law to provide to 

you certain written notices or disclosures. Described below are the terms and conditions for 

providing to you such notices and disclosures electronically through your DocuSign, Inc. 

(DocuSign) Express user account. Please read the information below carefully and thoroughly, 

and if you can access this information electronically to your satisfaction and agree to these terms 

and conditions, please confirm your agreement by clicking the 'I agree' button at the bottom of 

this document.  

Getting paper copies  
At any time, you may request from us a paper copy of any record provided or made available 

electronically to you by us. For such copies, as long as you are an authorized user of the 

DocuSign system you will have the ability to download and print any documents we send to you 

through your DocuSign user account for a limited period of time (usually 30 days) after such 

documents are first sent to you. After such time, if you wish for us to send you paper copies of 

any such documents from our office to you, you will be charged a $0.00 per-page fee. You may 

request delivery of such paper copies from us by following the procedure described below.  

Withdrawing your consent  
If you decide to receive notices and disclosures from us electronically, you may at any time 

change your mind and tell us that thereafter you want to receive required notices and disclosures 

only in paper format. How you must inform us of your decision to receive future notices and 

disclosure in paper format and withdraw your consent to receive notices and disclosures 

electronically is described below.  

Consequences of changing your mind  
If you elect to receive required notices and disclosures only in paper format, it will slow the 

speed at which we can complete certain steps in transactions with you and delivering services to 

you because we will need first to send the required notices or disclosures to you in paper format, 

and then wait until we receive back from you your acknowledgment of your receipt of such 

paper notices or disclosures. To indicate to us that you are changing your mind, you must 

withdraw your consent using the DocuSign 'Withdraw Consent' form on the signing page of your 

DocuSign account. This will indicate to us that you have withdrawn your consent to receive 

required notices and disclosures electronically from us and you will no longer be able to use your 

DocuSign Express user account to receive required notices and consents electronically from us 

or to sign electronically documents from us.  

All notices and disclosures will be sent to you electronically  
Unless you tell us otherwise in accordance with the procedures described herein, we will provide 

electronically to you through your DocuSign user account all required notices, disclosures, 

authorizations, acknowledgements, and other documents that are required to be provided or made 

available to you during the course of our relationship with you. To reduce the chance of you 

inadvertently not receiving any notice or disclosure, we prefer to provide all of the required 

notices and disclosures to you by the same method and to the same address that you have given 

us. Thus, you can receive all the disclosures and notices electronically or in paper format through 

the paper mail delivery system. If you do not agree with this process, please let us know as 

described below. Please also see the paragraph immediately above that describes the 

consequences of your electing not to receive delivery of the notices and disclosures 

electronically from us.  

How to contact Dakota County:  

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure created on: 2/22/2017 3:37:08 PM
Parties agreed to: Joseph Miller, Sara Glasby

Docusign Envelope ID: B858923D-BF5D-4F34-877C-7466A4AF7B77

44



You may contact us to let us know of your changes as to how we may contact you electronically, 

to request paper copies of certain information from us, and to withdraw your prior consent to 

receive notices and disclosures electronically as follows: 

To contact us by email send messages to: bruce.peters@co.dakota.mn.us 

To advise Dakota County of your new e-mail address  

To let us know of a change in your e-mail address where we should send notices and disclosures 

electronically to you, you must send an email message to us at bruce.peters@co.dakota.mn.us 

and in the body of such request you must state: your previous e-mail address, your new e-mail 

address.  We do not require any other information from you to change your email address..   

In addition, you must notify DocuSign, Inc to arrange for your new email address to be reflected 

in your DocuSign account by following the process for changing e-mail in DocuSign.  

To request paper copies from Dakota County  
To request delivery from us of paper copies of the notices and disclosures previously provided 

by us to you electronically, you must send us an e-mail to bruce.peters@co.dakota.mn.us and in 

the body of such request you must state your e-mail address, full name, US Postal address, and 

telephone number. We will bill you for any fees at that time, if any.  

To withdraw your consent with Dakota County  

To inform us that you no longer want to receive future notices and disclosures in electronic 

format you may: 

i. decline to sign a document from within your DocuSign account, and on the subsequent 

page, select the check-box indicating you wish to withdraw your consent, or you may; 

ii. send us an e-mail to bruce.peters@co.dakota.mn.us and in the body of such request 

you must state your e-mail, full name, IS Postal Address, telephone number, and account 

number. We do not need any other information from you to withdraw consent..  The 

consequences of your withdrawing consent for online documents will be that transactions 

may take a longer time to process..  

Required hardware and software  

Operating Systems: Windows2000? or WindowsXP? 

Browsers (for 

SENDERS): 
Internet Explorer 6.0? or above 

Browsers (for 

SIGNERS): 
Internet Explorer 6.0?, Mozilla FireFox 1.0, NetScape 7.2 (or above) 

Email: Access to a valid email account 

Screen Resolution: 800 x 600 minimum 

Enabled Security 

Settings: 
  Allow per session cookies 

Docusign Envelope ID: B858923D-BF5D-4F34-877C-7466A4AF7B77

45



  Users accessing the internet behind a Proxy Server must enable HTTP 

1.1 settings via proxy connection 

** These minimum requirements are subject to change. If these requirements change, we will 

provide you with an email message at the email address we have on file for you at that time 

providing you with the revised hardware and software requirements, at which time you will have 

the right to withdraw your consent.  

Acknowledging your access and consent to receive materials electronically  
To confirm to us that you can access this information electronically, which will be similar to 

other electronic notices and disclosures that we will provide to you, please verify that you were 

able to read this electronic disclosure and that you also were able to print on paper or 

electronically save this page for your future reference and access or that you were able to e-mail 

this disclosure and consent to an address where you will be able to print on paper or save it for 

your future reference and access. Further, if you consent to receiving notices and disclosures 

exclusively in electronic format on the terms and conditions described above, please let us know 

by clicking the 'I agree' button below.  

By checking the 'I Agree' box, I confirm that:  

 I can access and read this Electronic CONSENT TO ELECTRONIC RECEIPT OF 

ELECTRONIC RECORD AND SIGNATURE DISCLOSURES document; and 

 I can print on paper the disclosure or save or send the disclosure to a place where I can 

print it, for future reference and access; and 

 Until or unless I notify Dakota County as described above, I consent to receive from 

exclusively through electronic means all notices, disclosures, authorizations, 

acknowledgements, and other documents that are required to be provided or made 

available to me by  Dakota County during the course of my relationship with you. 

Docusign Envelope ID: B858923D-BF5D-4F34-877C-7466A4AF7B77

46



Certificate Of Completion
Envelope Id: B858923D-BF5D-4F34-877C-7466A4AF7B77 Status: Completed

Subject: Complete with Docusign: Wetland Banking Credits (Joseph Miller) - #DCA22670

Source Envelope: 

Document Pages: 7 Signatures: 1 Envelope Originator: 

Certificate Pages: 4 Initials: 0 Sara Glasby

AutoNav: Enabled

EnvelopeId Stamping: Enabled

Time Zone: (UTC-06:00) Central Time (US & Canada)

1590 Highway 55

Hastings, MN  55033

Sara.glasby@co.dakota.mn.us

IP Address: 35.148.61.138  

Record Tracking
Status: Original

             3/6/2025 3:14:51 PM

Holder: Sara Glasby

             Sara.glasby@co.dakota.mn.us

Location: DocuSign

Security Appliance Status: Connected Pool: StateLocal

Storage Appliance Status: Connected Pool: Dakota County Location: Docusign

Signer Events Signature Timestamp
Travis Thiel

travis.thiel@co.dakota.mn.us

Administrator

Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None) Signature Adoption: Pre-selected Style

Using IP Address: 207.171.99.1

Sent: 3/6/2025 3:17:05 PM

Viewed: 3/6/2025 3:17:35 PM 

Signed: 3/6/2025 3:17:53 PM

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Accepted: 3/6/2025 3:17:35 PM
      ID: 07ec85d3-fc78-454d-96c2-349ccc8e0b99

In Person Signer Events Signature Timestamp

Editor Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Agent Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Intermediary Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Certified Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Carbon Copy Events Status Timestamp

Witness Events Signature Timestamp

Notary Events Signature Timestamp

Envelope Summary Events Status Timestamps
Envelope Sent Hashed/Encrypted 3/6/2025 3:17:05 PM

Certified Delivered Security Checked 3/6/2025 3:17:35 PM

Signing Complete Security Checked 3/6/2025 3:17:53 PM

Completed Security Checked 3/6/2025 3:17:53 PM

Payment Events Status Timestamps

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure

47



ELECTRONIC RECORD AND SIGNATURE DISCLOSURE  
From time to time, Dakota County (we, us or Company) may be required by law to provide to 

you certain written notices or disclosures. Described below are the terms and conditions for 

providing to you such notices and disclosures electronically through your DocuSign, Inc. 

(DocuSign) Express user account. Please read the information below carefully and thoroughly, 

and if you can access this information electronically to your satisfaction and agree to these terms 

and conditions, please confirm your agreement by clicking the 'I agree' button at the bottom of 

this document.  

Getting paper copies  
At any time, you may request from us a paper copy of any record provided or made available 

electronically to you by us. For such copies, as long as you are an authorized user of the 

DocuSign system you will have the ability to download and print any documents we send to you 

through your DocuSign user account for a limited period of time (usually 30 days) after such 

documents are first sent to you. After such time, if you wish for us to send you paper copies of 

any such documents from our office to you, you will be charged a $0.00 per-page fee. You may 

request delivery of such paper copies from us by following the procedure described below.  

Withdrawing your consent  
If you decide to receive notices and disclosures from us electronically, you may at any time 

change your mind and tell us that thereafter you want to receive required notices and disclosures 

only in paper format. How you must inform us of your decision to receive future notices and 

disclosure in paper format and withdraw your consent to receive notices and disclosures 

electronically is described below.  

Consequences of changing your mind  
If you elect to receive required notices and disclosures only in paper format, it will slow the 

speed at which we can complete certain steps in transactions with you and delivering services to 

you because we will need first to send the required notices or disclosures to you in paper format, 

and then wait until we receive back from you your acknowledgment of your receipt of such 

paper notices or disclosures. To indicate to us that you are changing your mind, you must 

withdraw your consent using the DocuSign 'Withdraw Consent' form on the signing page of your 

DocuSign account. This will indicate to us that you have withdrawn your consent to receive 

required notices and disclosures electronically from us and you will no longer be able to use your 

DocuSign Express user account to receive required notices and consents electronically from us 

or to sign electronically documents from us.  

All notices and disclosures will be sent to you electronically  
Unless you tell us otherwise in accordance with the procedures described herein, we will provide 

electronically to you through your DocuSign user account all required notices, disclosures, 

authorizations, acknowledgements, and other documents that are required to be provided or made 

available to you during the course of our relationship with you. To reduce the chance of you 

inadvertently not receiving any notice or disclosure, we prefer to provide all of the required 

notices and disclosures to you by the same method and to the same address that you have given 

us. Thus, you can receive all the disclosures and notices electronically or in paper format through 

the paper mail delivery system. If you do not agree with this process, please let us know as 

described below. Please also see the paragraph immediately above that describes the 

consequences of your electing not to receive delivery of the notices and disclosures 

electronically from us.  

How to contact Dakota County:  

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure created on: 2/22/2017 3:37:08 PM
Parties agreed to: Travis Thiel

48



You may contact us to let us know of your changes as to how we may contact you electronically, 

to request paper copies of certain information from us, and to withdraw your prior consent to 

receive notices and disclosures electronically as follows: 

To contact us by email send messages to: bruce.peters@co.dakota.mn.us 

To advise Dakota County of your new e-mail address  

To let us know of a change in your e-mail address where we should send notices and disclosures 

electronically to you, you must send an email message to us at bruce.peters@co.dakota.mn.us 

and in the body of such request you must state: your previous e-mail address, your new e-mail 

address.  We do not require any other information from you to change your email address..   

In addition, you must notify DocuSign, Inc to arrange for your new email address to be reflected 

in your DocuSign account by following the process for changing e-mail in DocuSign.  

To request paper copies from Dakota County  
To request delivery from us of paper copies of the notices and disclosures previously provided 

by us to you electronically, you must send us an e-mail to bruce.peters@co.dakota.mn.us and in 

the body of such request you must state your e-mail address, full name, US Postal address, and 

telephone number. We will bill you for any fees at that time, if any.  

To withdraw your consent with Dakota County  

To inform us that you no longer want to receive future notices and disclosures in electronic 

format you may: 

i. decline to sign a document from within your DocuSign account, and on the subsequent 

page, select the check-box indicating you wish to withdraw your consent, or you may; 

ii. send us an e-mail to bruce.peters@co.dakota.mn.us and in the body of such request 

you must state your e-mail, full name, IS Postal Address, telephone number, and account 

number. We do not need any other information from you to withdraw consent..  The 

consequences of your withdrawing consent for online documents will be that transactions 

may take a longer time to process..  

Required hardware and software  

Operating Systems: Windows2000? or WindowsXP? 

Browsers (for 

SENDERS): 
Internet Explorer 6.0? or above 

Browsers (for 

SIGNERS): 
Internet Explorer 6.0?, Mozilla FireFox 1.0, NetScape 7.2 (or above) 

Email: Access to a valid email account 

Screen Resolution: 800 x 600 minimum 

Enabled Security 

Settings: 
  Allow per session cookies 

49



  Users accessing the internet behind a Proxy Server must enable HTTP 

1.1 settings via proxy connection 

** These minimum requirements are subject to change. If these requirements change, we will 

provide you with an email message at the email address we have on file for you at that time 

providing you with the revised hardware and software requirements, at which time you will have 

the right to withdraw your consent.  

Acknowledging your access and consent to receive materials electronically  
To confirm to us that you can access this information electronically, which will be similar to 

other electronic notices and disclosures that we will provide to you, please verify that you were 

able to read this electronic disclosure and that you also were able to print on paper or 

electronically save this page for your future reference and access or that you were able to e-mail 

this disclosure and consent to an address where you will be able to print on paper or save it for 

your future reference and access. Further, if you consent to receiving notices and disclosures 

exclusively in electronic format on the terms and conditions described above, please let us know 

by clicking the 'I agree' button below.  

By checking the 'I Agree' box, I confirm that:  

 I can access and read this Electronic CONSENT TO ELECTRONIC RECEIPT OF 

ELECTRONIC RECORD AND SIGNATURE DISCLOSURES document; and 

 I can print on paper the disclosure or save or send the disclosure to a place where I can 

print it, for future reference and access; and 

 Until or unless I notify Dakota County as described above, I consent to receive from 

exclusively through electronic means all notices, disclosures, authorizations, 

acknowledgements, and other documents that are required to be provided or made 

available to me by  Dakota County during the course of my relationship with you. 

50



51



3/28/2025

52



53



3/28/2025

54



 
 
 
March 21, 2025 
 
5E Properties 
23130 Woodland Ridge Drive 
Lakeville, MN 55044 
      
RE:  Annual conditional use permit (CUP) review 10132 235th Street W 
 
This letter is to inform you that the Town Board will perform the required annual review 
of your conditional use permit at their April 8, 2025, Town Board meeting.  You are 
NOT required to attend the Town Board meeting.  However, you are required to provide 
a response, indicating compliance to each condition, along with the $15 fee to the Clerk 
no later than April 1, 2025. 
 
For your ease of reference, attached is a copy of your CUP which lists the conditions of 
approval.   
 
If you have questions or wish to discuss this, please contact the Town Clerk with your 
request at clerk@eurekamn.gov.  
 
Thank you in advance for your assistance. 
  
Sincerely, 
 
Liz Atwater, Town Clerk 
Eureka Township 
 

Eureka Township 
Dakota County 

State of Minnesota 
________________________ 
25043 Cedar Avenue, Farmington, MN 55024-9670 

(952) 469-3736 / clerk@eurekamn.gov 
 

 
 
 

55

mailto:clerk@eurekamn.gov
mailto:clerk@eurekamn.gov


 

 

 

 

 

 

Eureka Township 
P.O. Box 576, Lakeville, MN 55044 

 

 

CERTIFICATION 
 
 

STATE OF MINNESOTA ) 

COUNTY OF DAKOTA )  ss. 

TOWNSHIP OF EUREKA ) 

 

 

I, Nanett Champlain, being the Clerk of Eureka Township, Minnesota, do hereby certify that the 

attached is a true and correct copy of a Conditional Use Permit for Spirit Ranch II on property legally 

described as: LOTS 1 & 2 EX PT OF 1 COM 1388.50 FT E OF W1/4 COR SEC E 208.71 FT R 81D 226.91 FT 

W & PARR WITH N LINE GOVT LOT 1 208.71 FT NW 226.91 FT TO BEG EX PT OF 1 COM NW COR E 

440 FT S 538 FT W 440 FT N 538 FT TO BEG EX RICE LAKE HGTS & EX COM 750 FT W OF NE COR 

GL 1 S 11D57M13S E 391.72 FT W TO E LINE RICE LAKE HTS N ON E LINE 160 FT N 08D21M 17S W 

226.91 FT TO N LINE E TO BEG & EX E 250 FT OF N 600 FT OF GOVT LOT 1    7 113 20 

 

Property Address: 10132  235th St. W., Lakeville Minnesota, passed by the Eureka Town Board on 

April  14, 2003, and further, that the same is on file and of record in the Township Clerk’s office.  

 

  

 

 ______________________________________ 

             Nanett Champlain 

        Eureka Township Clerk  

 

            Dated: December 4, 2007 

 

 

 

56



 

Eureka Township 
Dakota County 

State of Minnesota 
 

Conditional Use Permit  

 

PLAT NAME:  SECTION 7 TWN 113 RANGE 20 

TAX DESCRIPTION: LOTS 1 & 2 EX PT OF 1 COM 1388.50 FT E OF W1/4 COR SEC E 208.71 FT R 81D 

226.91 FT W & PARR WITH N LINE GOVT LOT 1 208.71 FT NW 226.91 FT TO BEG EX PT OF 1 COM NW 

COR E 440 FT S 538 FT W 440 FT N 538 FT TO BEG EX RICE LAKE HGTS & EX COM 750 FT W OF NE COR 

GL 1 S 11D57M13S E 391.72 FT W TO E LINE RICE LAKE HTS N ON E LINE 160 FT N 08D21M 17S W 226.91 

FT TO N LINE E TO BEG & EX E 250 FT OF N 600 FT OF GOVT LOT 1    7 113 20 

 

EXTRACT OF APRIL 14, 2003 EUREKA TOWN BOARD MINUTES  

OF EUREKA TOWNSHIP,  

DAKOTA COUNTY, MINNESOTA 

 

Chair Don Pflaum called the regular monthly meeting of Eureka Township to order at 7:30 PM.  Present 
were Supervisors Don Pflaum, Dan Rogers, Kenny Miller, Connie Anderson, Mark Malecha and Treasurer 
Nanett Leine.    

 
Spirit Ranch 1 and Spirit Ranch 2 

 Terri Petter asked for a CUP for Spirit Ranch 1 located at 24005 Dodd Blvd.   The dog kennel and horse 
boarding is located at this ranch.  She also requested a CUP for Spirit Ranch 2 for boarding, breeding and 

sales of cattle.  (The cattle graze on Spirit Ranch 1 also.)  There was no public comment against Spirit 
Ranch 1 or Spirit Ranch 2 at the public hearing on April 7, 2003.  The Planning Commission recommended 
approval. 
 A motion by Supervisor Mark Malecha: To grant the Conditional Use Permit for Spirit Ranch 1 located at 

24005 Dodd Blvd, Lakeville, MN. As presented. Motion seconded by Supervisor Kenny Miller.  Motion 
carried. The renewal fee is $15 on a yearly basis, April 1. 
 A motion by Supervisor Mark Malecha: To grant the Conditional Use Permit for Spirit Ranch  2 located at 
10132  235th St. W., Lakeville, MN. As presented. Motion seconded by Supervisor Dan Rogers.  Motion 

carried. The renewal fee is $15 on a yearly basis, April 1. 

      

     
 
 

57



 
 
 
March 21, 2025 
 
Chris Hale 
24005 Dodd Blvd 
Lakeville, MN  55044 
      
RE:  Annual conditional use permit (CUP) review 
 
This letter is to inform you that the Town Board will perform the required annual review 
of your conditional use permit at their April 8, 2025, Town Board meeting.  You are 
NOT required to attend the Town Board meeting.  However, you are required to provide 
a response, indicating compliance to each condition, along with the $15 fee  and $100 
dog kennel license to the Clerk no later than April 1, 2025. 
 
 
If you have questions or wish to discuss this, please contact the Town Clerk with your 
request at clerk@eurekamn.gov.  
 
Thank you in advance for your assistance. 
  
Sincerely, 
 
Liz Atwater, Town Clerk 
Eureka Township 
 

Eureka Township 
Dakota County 

State of Minnesota 
________________________ 
25043 Cedar Avenue, Farmington, MN 55024-9670 

(952) 469-3736 / clerk@eurekamn.gov 
 

 
 
 

58

mailto:clerk@eurekamn.gov
mailto:clerk@eurekamn.gov


 

 

 

 

 

 

Eureka Township 
 P.O. Box 576, Lakeville, MN 55044 

 

 

CERTIFICATION 
 
 

STATE OF MINNESOTA ) 

COUNTY OF DAKOTA )  ss. 

TOWNSHIP OF EUREKA ) 

 

 

I, Nanett Champlain, being the Clerk of Eureka Township, Minnesota, do hereby certify that the 

attached is a true and correct copy of a Conditional Use Permit for Spirit Ranch I located on property 

legally described as: PT OF NW 1/4 OF NE 1/4 & PT OF NE 1/4 OF NW 1/4 COM NE COR W 1/2 OF NE 

1/4 W ON N LINE 171.24 FT TO BEG S 15D 11 M 14S W 796 FT W 2154.64 FT M/L TO W LINE E 1/2 OF 

NW 1/4 N 768 FT TO N LINE E 2360.02 FT M/L TO BEG   18 113 20  

 

Property address: 24005 Dodd Blvd., Lakeville Minnesota, passed by the Eureka Town Board on April  

14, 2003, and further, that the same is on file and of record in the Township Clerk’s office. 

 

  

 _____________________________________ 

             Nanett Champlain 

        Eureka Township Clerk  

 

            Dated: December 4, 2007  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

59



 

 

 

Eureka Township 
Dakota County 

State of Minnesota 
 

Conditional Use Permit  

 

PLAT NAME:  SECTION 18 TWN 113 RANGE 20 

TAX DESCRIPTION: PT OF NW 1/4 OF NE 1/4 & PT OF NE 1/4 OF NW 1/4 COM NE COR W 1/2 OF NE 1/4 

W ON N LINE 171.24 FT TO BEG S 15D 11 M 14S W 796 FT W 2154.64 FT M/L TO W LINE E 1/2 OF NW 1/4 N 

768 FT TO N LINE E 2360.02 FT M/L TO BEG   18 113 20 

 

EXTRACT OF APRIL 14, 2003 EUREKA TOWN BOARD MINUTES  

OF EUREKA TOWNSHIP,  

DAKOTA COUNTY, MINNESOTA 

 

Chair Don Pflaum called the regular monthly meeting of Eureka Township to order at 7:30 PM.  Present 
were Supervisors Don Pflaum, Dan Rogers, Kenny Miller, Connie Anderson, Mark Malecha and Treasurer 
Nanett Leine.    

 
Spirit Ranch 1 and Spirit Ranch 2 

 Terri Petter asked for a CUP for Spirit Ranch 1 located at 24005 Dodd Blvd.   The dog kennel and horse 
boarding is located at this ranch.  She also requested a CUP for Spirit Ranch 2 for boarding, breeding and 

sales of cattle.  (The cattle graze on Spirit Ranch 1 also.)  There was no public comment against Spirit 
Ranch 1 or Spirit Ranch 2 at the public hearing on April 7, 2003.  The Planning Commission recommended 
approval. 
 A motion by Supervisor Mark Malecha: To grant the Conditional Use Permit for Spirit Ranch 1 located at 

24005 Dodd Blvd, Lakeville, MN. As presented. Motion seconded by Supervisor Kenny Miller.  Motion 
carried. The renewal fee is $15 on a yearly basis, April 1. 
 A motion by Supervisor Mark Malecha: To grant the Conditional Use Permit for Spirit Ranch 2 located at 
10132  235th St. W., Lakeville, MN. As presented. Motion seconded by Supervisor Dan Rogers.  Motion 

carried. The renewal fee is $15 on a yearly basis, April 1. 

      

     
 
 

 

60



 
 
 
March 21, 2025 
 
Living Waters 
22222 Dodd Blvd 
Lakeville, MN  55044 
      
RE:  Annual conditional use permit (CUP) review 
 
This letter is to inform you that the Town Board will perform the required annual review 
of your conditional use permit at their April 8, 2025, Town Board meeting.  You are 
NOT required to attend the Town Board meeting.  However, you are required to provide 
a response, indicating compliance to each condition to the Clerk no later than April 1, 
2025. 
 
For your ease of reference, attached is a copy of your CUP which lists the conditions of 
approval.   
 
If you have questions or wish to discuss this, please contact the Town Clerk with your 
request at clerk@eurekamn.gov.  
 
Thank you in advance for your assistance. 
  
Sincerely, 
 
Liz Atwater, Town Clerk 
Eureka Township 
 

Eureka Township 
Dakota County 

State of Minnesota 
________________________ 
25043 Cedar Avenue, Farmington, MN 55024-9670 

(952) 469-3736 / clerk@eurekamn.gov 
 

 
 
 

61

mailto:clerk@eurekamn.gov
mailto:clerk@eurekamn.gov


62



63



64



65



66



67



A. 

B. 

C. 

D. 

Township of Eureka, MN
Friday, April 4, 2025

Chapter 165. Mining

Article IV. Permitting Procedure

§ 165-11. Interim use permit.

Mineral extraction permits shall be considered and processed by
the Town Board as interim use permits. The procedures are defined
in Chapter 240, Zoning, Article IV, § 240-32. If the Town Board
grants the interim use permit, the Town Board shall specify the
particular date or the occurrence of the particular event when the
permit is to expire. The Town Board may attach conditions to the
interim use permit in addition to those set forth in this chapter.

Before making a formal application, applicants shall appear before
the Town Board at a regularly scheduled meeting to make a
preliminary presentation on the conceptual nature of the proposed
extraction activity. The Town Board will provide the applicant with a
copy of this chapter, outlining the application process and permit
requirements.

The application and required supporting information shall be filed
with the Planning Commission at its regularly scheduled meeting. If
the application is incomplete, the Commission, in writing, within 15
days, will notify the applicant of the additional information required
for the application to be complete.

Once the application is deemed complete, the Zoning Administrator
shall provide landowners within 1,000 feet of the applicant's
property with notification of the application for an interim use permit
for mineral extraction via first-class mail.

68

https://ecode360.com/print/42241124#42241124
https://ecode360.com/print/42241125#42241125
https://ecode360.com/print/42241126#42241126
https://ecode360.com/print/42241127#42241127
https://ecode360.com/print/35496649#35496649
https://ecode360.com/print/35496787#35496787
https://ecode360.com/print/35497008#35497008


E. 

F. 

G. 

H. 

I. 

A registered engineer licensed by the State of Minnesota and
qualified in this field shall review the application. The Town Board
shall select the engineering firm. The engineer will submit the
results of his or her findings, along with any recommendations for
actions, to the Planning Commission.

Within 30 days of receipt of the registered engineer's findings and
recommendations, the Planning Commission, together with the
engineer and Mining Superintendent, shall prepare an
environmental assessment worksheet (EAW), according to
Minnesota Rules, Chapter 4410. After this process is completed,
the Town Board shall determine within 30 days whether an
environmental impact statement (EIS) is required.

Upon completion of the environmental review process, the
Planning Commission, at its next regularly scheduled meeting,
shall process the mineral extraction permit application as an
application for an interim use permit, following the procedures for
interim use permits defined in Chapter 240, Zoning, Article IV,
§ 240-32. The Planning Commission may require that the applicant
submit additional information to address or clarify any issues raised
in the environmental review. The Planning Commission will use the
assistance of the Mining Superintendent as it deems necessary.
The formal interim use permit application review process shall
commence only after completion of the environmental review and
upon receipt of additional information required.

Within 30 days of receipt of all additional required information and
upon completion of the environmental review process, the Planning
Commission shall schedule, provide notice of, and hold a public
hearing for the mineral extraction permit, following the procedures
defined for interim use permits in Chapter 240, Zoning, Article IV,
§ 240-32.

After the public hearing, the Planning Commission shall make
findings on the permit application and submit recommendations to
the Town Board, following the procedures defined for interim use
permits in Chapter 240, Zoning, Article IV, § 240-32.

69

https://ecode360.com/print/42241128#42241128
https://ecode360.com/print/42241129#42241129
https://ecode360.com/print/42241130#42241130
https://ecode360.com/print/42241131#42241131
https://ecode360.com/print/42241132#42241132
https://ecode360.com/print/35496649#35496649
https://ecode360.com/print/35496787#35496787
https://ecode360.com/print/35497008#35497008
https://ecode360.com/print/35496649#35496649
https://ecode360.com/print/35496787#35496787
https://ecode360.com/print/35497008#35497008
https://ecode360.com/print/35496649#35496649
https://ecode360.com/print/35496787#35496787
https://ecode360.com/print/35497008#35497008


J. 

K. 

L. 

M. 

N. 

If the Town Board, registered engineer, or Planning Commission
cannot act upon the permit application within the permitting time
frames specified herein and by state law, the Town Board shall
notify the applicant in writing to request an extension of time and
stating the reasons for the extension.

Any application that is inconsistent with the Comprehensive Plan
will be denied. The applicant has the right to submit an application
to the Town Board to amend the Comprehensive Plan, according to
procedures established in the Eureka Township Code of
Ordinances.

The Town Board shall approve the permit application, deny the
permit application or approve the permit application with
modification. Modifications may include additional restrictions.

When a permit is approved, the Town Board or its designee shall
complete a development agreement, signed by representatives of
the Town Board, the landowner and the operator (if different from
landowner). Landowner and operator, if different, are jointly
responsible for complying with the requirements in the interim use
permit. If the identity of either the landowner or the operator
changes, the Township must approve the change and the new
landowner or operator must sign on and agree to all obligations in
the interim use permit and all financial obligations in order for the
interim use permit to stay in place. Failure to agree to the terms
and conditions of the interim use permit or the development
agreement will constitute a terminating event for the interim use
permit. The Township may undertake an enforcement action
against the operator or landowner, or both, if there is a violation.

A mineral extraction permit application denied by the Town Board
may not be reapplied for, whether the same or modified application,
for a period of 12 months from the date of denial. Any change
involving structural alterations, enlargement, intensification of use,
or similar change not specifically permitted by the interim use
permit issued shall require an amended interim use permit and all
procedures shall apply as if a new permit were being issued. If the
amendment does not include any change involving structural

70

https://ecode360.com/print/42241133#42241133
https://ecode360.com/print/42241134#42241134
https://ecode360.com/print/42241135#42241135
https://ecode360.com/print/42241136#42241136
https://ecode360.com/print/42241137#42241137


alterations, enlargement, intensification of use, or similar change of
the primary use(s), the applicant may amend the originally filed
supporting documentation, including a registered engineer's finding
stating whether an amended EAW/EIS is required. Upon approval
of an amended interim use permit, the development agreement
shall also be amended to reflect the amended permit. The Zoning
Administrator shall maintain a record of all interim use permits
issued, including information on the use, location, and conditions
imposed by the Planning Commission and Town Board, time limits,
review dates, and such other information as may be appropriate.

71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



Date: 11/05/2024 - 2:49 PM 
Design ID: 337455558182 
Estimated Price: $21,066.34 
*Today's estimated price. Future pricing may go up or down. Tax, lobo1; and delive1y not included. 

SIDEWALLC 

Mastercraft® 36W x 80H Primed Steel Venting Half Lite 

�' 

es1 n 

GARAGE 

ENDWALLA 

16Xl0 White Ribbed Torsion Spring (R-Value 6.5) 9x8 White Raised Panel Plain EZ Set Torsion Spring (R-Value 12.9) 

48"W x 36"H Performax™ Slider Window with Nailing Flange 48"W x 36"H Perfonnax™ Slider Window with Nailing Flange 

For other design systems search "Design & Buy" ou Menards.com Page 4 of 11 

82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



EUREKA TOWNSHIP 
DAKOTA COUNTY, MINNESOTA 

Resolution No. ______________ 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING AN INTERIM USE PERMIT 
FOR THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 22702 HAMBURG AVENUE 

 
 WHEREAS, David M. King (“Applicant”) of Applewood Orchard submitted an 
application (“Application”) to Eureka Township (“Town”) requesting an interim use permit 
(“IUP”) to continue operating an agritourism activity on the property (PID No. 130040075020) 
located at 22702 Hamburg Avenue (“Property”); 
 
 WHEREAS, the Applicant operates an apple orchard on the Property and desires to 
obtain the IUP to specifically identify and allow certain agritourism activities on the Property 
(collectively, the “Agritourism Business”) under Chapter 240 of the Eureka Town Code 
(“Zoning Ordinance”); 
 
 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission held a public hearing, after due notice having 
been provided, on the Application on March 18, 2025 and heard from the Applicant and the 
members of the public who wished to speak to this matter; 
 
 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission acted to direct the Town Attorney to prepare a 
resolution approving the Application for review and action on a formal recommendation at its 
April 3, 2025 meeting; 
 
 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission reviewed the proposed resolution approving the 
IUP at its April 1, 2025 meeting and acted to forward the Application to the Town Board with a 
recommendation that the IUP be approved with the conditions identified in the proposed 
resolution; 
 
 WHEREAS, the Town Board considered the Application and finds and determines as 
follows: 
 

a. The Property contains more than 20 acres and is the Town’s Agricultural District. 
 

b. Under Section 240-7(D)(3) of the Zoning Ordinance, Agritourism Activities are classified 
as an interim use and are allowed with the issuance of an IUP and compliance with the 
performance standards set out in Section 240-19.5. 
 

c. The Property is bordered on the west by Hamburg Avenue, the north by 225th Street West, 
and the east by Cedar Avenue. 
 

d. The Property contains a single-family dwelling, a detached equipment shed, a retail shop 
(“Store”), a pavilion building, and a fire pit area adjacent to the pavilion (“Fire Pit”), all 
of which are located on the western end of the Property and are accessed from Hamburg 
Ave.  The Applicant has also utalized a portable 40’ x 100’ tent to provide shade for 

154



visitors.  The Applicant proposes to erect a 21’ x 60’ portable greenhouse to grow plants 
and to sell them to visitors. 

 
e. An orchard has operated on the Property for years and that type of agricultural use is an 

allowed use in the Agricultural District.  However, retail sales of products not grown on 
the Property and the other activities associated with inviting the public onto the Property 
were not clearly allowed under the Zoning Ordinance until the Town Board amended the 
Zoning Ordinance to allow Agritourism Activities. 
 

f. Section 240-64 of the Zoning Ordinance defines Agritourism Activities as follows: 
 
“An activity carried out on a farm or ranch that allows organizations or members of the 
general public, for recreational, entertainment, charitable, or educational purposes, to 
view, enjoy, or participate in rural activities, including, but not limited to: farming; 
viticulture; wine making; ranching; farm markets; freshly made and packaged food and 
beverage; and historical, cultural, recreational, farm stay, gleaning, harvest-your-own, or 
natural activities and attractions, including but not limited to: site-related and 
agritourism-related seasonal retail; educational programs; fire pits; hay pyramids; corn 
mazes; games; nonmechanical and farm equipment rides; and arts and crafts. An activity 
is an agritourism activity whether or not the participant pays to participate in the 
activity.” 
 

g. The Applicant proposes to undertake or offer to the public a variety of activities on the 
Property as part of its Agritourism Business.  Under the Zoning Ordinance, only those 
Agritourism Activities expressly allowed in the IUP may occur on the Property as part of 
the Agritourism Business. 
 

h. The Applicant has obtained a permit from Dakota County to access the eastern side of the 
Property from Cedar Avenue.  The Applicant proposes to construct a parking area for 
those utilizing that access to the Property.  The County retained the right to revoke the 
permit under certain circumstances. 
 

i. The criteria for issuing an IUP are set out in Section 240-32 of the Zoning Ordinance. 
 
(1) The interim use is identified as a permitted interim use in the zoning district where 

the property is located. 
 

Agritourism Activities are allowed under Section 240-7(D)(3) of the Zoning 
Ordinance as an interim use in the Agricultural District. 

 
(2) The interim use will meet or exceed the performance standards set forth in this 

chapter and other applicable Township ordinances. 
 

The Agritourism Business satisfies the performance standards for commercial 
operations in Section 240-20 of the Zoning Ordinance as it has more than 
sufficient area to accommodate parking for employees and visitors and will utilize 

155



existing buildings, except for a 40’ x 100’ seasonal tent that was previously used, 
and a new 21’ x 60’ seasonal greenhouse. 

 
(3) The interim use complies with the specific standards for the use identified in the 

ordinances allowing the interim use. 
 

The proposed Agritourism Business satisfies the performance standards in Section 
240-19.5 of the Zoning Ordinance because the Property is located in the Town’s 
Agricultural District, it contains more than 20 acres, it is accessory to the apple 
orchard agricultural use, has sufficient on-site parking, and the conditions 
imposed on this IUP will ensure the other performance standards are satisfied. 

 
(4) The date or event that will terminate the use can be identified with certainty. 
 

A terminating event and date are set out in this IUP. 
 
(5) Permission of the use will not impose additional costs on the public if it is necessary 

for the public to take the property in the future. 
 

This is a statutory requirement, and the Town Board determines the proposed 
Agritourism Business will likely not be impacted by any significant takings in the 
future beyond perhaps right-of-way improvement projects.  The costs of such 
takings will not be impacted in any significant way by issuing this IUP. 

 
(6) The applicant agrees to any conditions that the Town Board deems appropriate for 

permission of the use. 
 

A requirement to operate the Agritourism Business is Applicant’s agreement to 
comply with the conditions imposed on this IUP. 

 
(7) The use will not create an excessive burden on existing parks, schools, streets and 

other public facilities and utilities which serve or are proposed to serve the area. 
 

There are no anticipated impacts on parks, schools, or other public facilities other 
than the streets that provide access to the Property.  The Applicant indicated that 
they counted 44,000 vehicles accessed the Property in a two-month period in 
2024.  The expansion of the use allowed by this IUP will likely expand the number 
of vehicles accessing the Property in the future and so the Town Board does have 
concerns regarding the impacts on Hamburg Ave. and 225th St. W., both of which 
are unpaved Town roads.  Cedar Ave. is a paved county highway and should be 
able to handle the additional traffic generated by the use.  The Town Board is not 
able to identify at this time in any particular detail the additional traffic the 
expanded Agritourism Business will generate, but the Town needs to provide a 
mechanism for addressing the additional traffic if it results in significantly greater 
maintenance costs for the Town.  The condition imposed on this IUP about 
entering into a road agreement is intended to address those concerns. 

156



 
(8) The use will be sufficiently compatible with or separated by adequate distance or 

screening from adjacent agriculturally or residentially zoned or used land so that 
existing property will not be depreciated in value and there will be no deterrence to 
development of vacant land. 

 
The Property is located in an agricultural area with very few homes in the 
immediate area.  A regional airport is located adjacent to the Property, which 
makes the Applicant subject to certain FAA rules that limit the activities that may 
occur on the Property. 

 
(9) The structure and site shall have an appearance that will not have an adverse effect 

upon adjacent properties. 
 

The existing structures on the Property have a good appearance and are well 
maintained.  The additional structures proposed by the Applicant are limited to 
temporary structures that will be taken down at the end of each season. 

 
(10) The use will not cause traffic hazards or congestion. 

 
The Applicant will be responsible for operating the Agritourism Business in a way 
that does not create traffic congestion.  The size of the Property should allow for 
vehicles to, in an orderly fashion, drive off the accessing public roads and to park 
on the Property. 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that, based on the Application, the record of 
this matter, and the findings and determinations contained herein, the Town Board of Eureka 
Township hereby approves and issues an interim use permit to operate an Agritourism Business 
on the Property, conditioned on the Applicant remaining in compliance with all of the following 
conditions and limitations: 
 

1. Scope of Agritourism Business.  The Agritourism Activities authorized by this IUP, and 
which constitute the Agritourism Business, are limited to the activities identified in this 
section.  If the Applicant has any questions regarding whether a particular activity is 
included in the following, it may seek an interpretation from the Town Board during the 
required annual review as discussed below.  

 
(a) Portable Greenhouse/Flower Stand.  Erect a 21’ x 60’ portable greenhouse building to 

grow and sell flowers and similar plants to visitors.  The greenhouse will be taken 
down at the end of the apple season and then may be erected again each spring. 
 

(b) Retail Sales.  Utilize the existing Store on the Property to sell small items that may be 
of interest to those visiting an orchard.  Items for sale may only be displayed and sold 
within the Store. 

 

157



(c) Food Sales.  In addition to the sale of apples and apple products as part of the 
orchard, the Applicant may have up to three food-trucks on the Property to sell food 
to visitors.  The Applicant may also operate its own food stand to sell food produced 
on the Property. 

 
(d) Liquor Sales.  If all the required licenses are obtained, the Applicant may provide for 

the sale of hard cider and other alcoholic products on the Property, but only to the 
extent such alcoholic products were produced with crops grown on the Property.  The 
Applicant is not authorized to sell any products containing alcohol that were not 
produced from the Applicant’s own crops or that exceed 20% alcohol by volume. 

 
(e) Hayrides.  Hayrides and similar activities on the Property. 
 
(f) Bounce Houses.  Bounce houses and similar blow-up amusement devices. 
 
(g) Nonmechanical Games and Structures.  Nonmechanical games and structures to 

entertain or amuse visitors such as yard games, corn maze, basketball, and slides.  No 
structure shall be erected that is more than 25 feet in height.  

 
(h) Prohibited Activities.  The above list of activities are the only activities allowed to be 

part of the Agritourism Business under this IUP.  To help provide clarity to the scope 
of the allowed activities, and without expanding the interpretation of the allowed 
activities, the following activities are expressly prohibited from occurring as part of 
the Agritourism Business: amplified music or voices; bumper cars; any activity that 
occurs outside of the indicated hours of operation; car shows; sale of acholic spirits; 
and wedding receptions. 

 
2. Hours of Operation.   

 
(a) Regular Hours.  Except for the extended hours allowed for campfire gatherings, the 

Agritourism Business shall only be operated during the following hours: 
 

Monday - Thursday 10:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m. 
Friday - Sunday 9:00 a.m. to 7:30 p.m. 

 
(b) Campfire Gathering Events.  The following extended hours of operation apply to 

campfire gathering events as described in this IUP: 
 

Wednesday – Saturday Until 10:00 p.m. 
 

(c) Extended Hours for an Event.  The Applicant may request an extension of the hours 
of operation to up to 10:00 p.m. for up to two special events in a calendar year.  A 
written request detailing the event and the requested extended hours must be 
submitted to the Town.  The Town Board will consider and act the request at a regular 
meeting.  The hours of operation approved by the Town Board shall apply to that 

158



particular event in that year only.  Requests for extended hours must be approved 
each year, even if it is for the same event as conducted in prior years.  
 

3. Campfire Gathering Events.  The Applicant may utilize the existing fire pit area of the 
Property during the regular business hours as it determines appropriate and may also host 
scheduled campfire gathering activities for groups of up to 75 people during the extended 
hours established in this IUP for such events.  Live music may be provided during the 
event, provided that there are no more than two musicians and there is no amplified 
music, voices, or other sounds associated with the performance. 
 

4. Wedding Ceremonies.  Host wedding ceremonies on the Property, but not wedding 
receptions. 
 

5. Music.  The Applicant may have musical performers play live music during the business 
hours.  The music and voices must not be amplified.  
 

6. Sanitation Facilities.  The Applicant must have bathroom facilities and washing stations 
available to visitors to the Property during all hours of operation.  At least one portable 
bathroom shall be available for every 40 visitors. 
 

7. Parking.   
 
(a) On-Site Only.  The Applicant must provide on-site parking for all guests of the 

orchard and the Agritourism Business.  No parking on any of the adjacent public 
roads is allowed.  The Applicant will utilize parking attendants when large numbers 
of visitors are anticipated to facilitate the efficient movement of vehicles off of the 
public roads and parking on the Property in an orderly fashion to avoid traffic backing 
up on the roads. 
 

(b) No Parking Signs.  The Applicant may place temporary no parking signs along the 
town roads during weekends or special events to discourage visitors from parking 
along the roads.  The Applicant is responsible for removing the signs by the end of 
operating hours on Sunday each week or at the end of the special event. 

 
8. Noise.  The Agritourism Business shall not generate noise that violates any applicable 

state or local standards, or that creates an unreasonable nuisance for neighboring owners. 
 

9. Lighting.  All lighting associated with the Agritourism Business shall be downcast, so 
they do not shine off of the Property.  No search lights or other similar types of lighting 
that shine above or outside of the Property is allowed. 
 

10. Road Agreement.  If the Town Board determines the traffic generated by the Agritourism 
Business results in the Town having to spend more funds to maintain the Town’s roads 
leading to the Property, the Applicant shall work in good faith with the Town Board to 
work out a road agreement to reimburse the Town for the additional maintenance 
(grading and graveling) costs incurred.   

159



 
11. Annual Review.  The Applicant shall pay the associated fee and participate in an annual 

review of the Agritourism Business with the Town Board during a regular Town Board 
meeting.  The annual review provides an opportunity for the Town Board to discuss with 
the Applicant any complaints, issues, or concerns that have arisen regarding the use, as 
well as any additional activities or events the Applicant would like to undertake as part of 
the Agritourism Business. 
 

12. Termination.  This IUP shall terminate on May 1, 2030, or upon the sale or transfer of the 
Property to another person, whichever occurs first.  A transfer of the Property to an 
immediate family member does not constitute a terminating event. 
 

13. Inspections.  The Town, its officers, and consultants may enter the Property, after 
providing reasonable notice to the Applicant, at all reasonable times to conduct 
inspections for the purpose of ensuring compliance with this IUP.  Prior notice to inspect 
the Property is not required in the event of an emergency. 
 

14. Permits and Licenses.  The Applicant is solely responsible for obtaining all required 
permits, licenses, and permissions as may be required to undertake the Agritourism 
Business activities allowed by this IUP before undertaking the particular activity. 
 

15. Legal Compliance.  This IUP is subject to the requirements of the Town Code and the 
Applicant is required to comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws, rules, 
and ordinances. 

 
16. Amended Permit.  Any alteration of the use of the Property including, but not limited to, 

expansion of the use beyond what is allowed by this IUP or a proposal to undertake any 
activity as part of the Agritourism Business that is not expressly allowed by this IUP, 
shall not be permitted unless an amended interim use permit is obtained from the Town. 
 

17. Acceptance of Conditions.  Utilization of the Property for any of the uses allowed by this 
permit shall automatically be deemed acceptance of, and agreement to, the terms and 
conditions of the permit without qualification, reservation, or exception. 
 

18. No Waiver.  A failure by the Town to take action with respect to any violation of any 
condition, covenant, or term of this IUP shall not be deemed to be a waiver of such 
condition, covenant, or term or any subsequent violation of the same or any other 
condition, covenant, or term. 

 
19. Revocation.  The violation of any terms or conditions of this IUP including, but not 

limited to, any applicable federal, state, or local laws, rules, regulations, and ordinances, 
may result in revocation of this IUP.  The Applicant shall be given written notice of any 
violation and reasonable time (not less than 30 days) to cure the violation before a 
revocation of the permit may occur. The Town will provide the Applicant an opportunity 
to be heard before acting on a proposed revocation. 

 

160



Adopted this 8th day of April 2025. 
 
 
        BY THE TOWN BOARD 
 
 
 
        ____________________________ 
        Mark Ceminsky, Chairperson 
 
 
Attest:______________________________ 
 Liz Atwater, Clerk-Treasurer 
 
 

161



162



EUREKA TOWNSHIP 
Dakota County, State of Minnesota 

 
SPECIAL BOARD OF CANVASS MEETING 

March 12, 2025 – 6:30 P.M. 
 

 
Call to Order 
The Eureka Township Special Board of Canvass was called to order at 6:31 p.m. by Chair Pete 
Storlie. 
 
Supervisors Present: Lu Barfknecht, Mark Ceminsky, Allen Novacek, Tim Pope, Pete Storlie. 
Others Present:  Liz Atwater 
Zoom Attendance: None 
 
Oath 
Clerk Atwater issued the Oath to the Board of Canvass members and presented the canvass 
reports and abstracts to the Board. 
 
Review of Canvass reports and abstracts 
As compiled from the official returns summarized as follows: 
Number of persons registered at the beginning of Election Day  ___1092_________ 
Number of persons registered on Election Day   ____2___________ 
Number of accepted absentee, mail, and overseas ballots   ____4__________ 
Total number of persons voting in person    ____245_________ 
 

Declare results of the vote 
The Board of Canvass reviewed all election material from the County and from the Clerk. 
 

 
Election Board Summary Statement 

 

Candidate Name Office 

Votes 
Cast in 
Person 

Early/UOCAVA/AB 
Votes Total Votes 

Dan Ames Supervisor Seat #5 111 4 115 
Ashley Schultze Supervisor Seat #5 56 0 56 
Write In Supervisor Seat #5 5 0 5 
 TOTAL VOTES  IN THIS CONTEST 176 

 
Motion:  Supervisor Barfknecht moved to accept the votes as presented for Supervisor Seat 
#5.  Vice Chair Ceminsky seconded the motion.  Motion carried 5-0. 
 
Motion:  Supervisor Barfknecht moved to authorize the Clerk to issue notification to the 
candidates.  Vice Chair Ceminsky seconded the motion.  Motion carried 5-0. 

163



 
Adjournment 
Motion: Supervisor Novacek moved to adjourn the meeting.  Supervisor Pope seconded the 
motion.    Motion carried 5-0. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 6:41 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Liz Atwater, Town Clerk 
 
 
Minutes Officially Approved By:    ___________________________________________ on: __________________ 
                                                    Town Supervisor                                        Date  

164



EUREKA TOWNSHIP 
Dakota County, State of Minnesota 

 
TOWN BOARD MEETING 

March 12, 2025 – 7:00 P.M. 
 
Call to Order 
The Eureka Township Town Board meeting was called to order at 7:00 p.m. by Chair Pete Storlie and 
the Pledge of Allegiance was given. 
 
Supervisors Present:  Lu Barfknecht, Mark Ceminsky, Allen Novacek, Tim Pope, and Pete Storlie.   
Others Present:  Liz Atwater, John Powell, Rich Puelston, Myrna Juliar, Ashley Schultze 
Zoom Attendance:  Jackie, Dan, Julie Larson, Eric Fredrickson, Becky. 
 
Approval of the Agenda 
The following items were added to the agenda: 

• IV. Reports B. Planning Commission ii. Topics from Round Table  
3.  Report 

• IV. Road Reports 
       B. Dakota County- Todd Howard 
       C.  Scotts 

D. Castle Rock Request 
• XII. Unfinished Business: 

G. Dakota Electric and Lakeville 
• XIII. New Business: 

B. Resolution 2025-04 Cannabis Resolution 
C. Town Hall Lawn Care Quote 
D. Tree Grant 

 
Motion: Chair Pete Storlie moved to approve the agenda as amended.  Supervisor Barfknecht 
seconded the motion.    Motion carried 5-0. 
 
Public Comment 
*The opinions expressed in public comments are those of the authors and may not represent the official 
positions of the Town Board.  The Town Board does not control or guarantee the accuracy of information 
contained in the comments, nor does it endorse the views expressed. 
 
Chair Storlie opened the floor for public comment and stated that if anyone has comment regarding 
any agenda items, now is your time to speak.  Chair Storlie closed the floor for public comment. 
 
Reports  
Planning Commission- Brian Storlie 
Planning Commissioner, Donovan Palmquist, shared items that were discussed at the March  Planning 
Commission meeting.  A full summary is provided in the Planning Commission meeting minutes and 
is available for viewing at the Town Hall and on the website.   
 
 

165



CUP Reviews 
George Mwauri- 2nd Dwelling 
Motion: Vice Chair Ceminsky moved to pass the review of the CUP for the 2nd dwelling on the property.     
Supervisor Barfknecht seconded the motion.    Motion carried 5-0. 
 
George Mwauri- Airstrip 
The property owners do not wish to keep the CUP.   They will work with the Clerk/Treasurer to 
submit a written letter.   The Town Board will then need to pass a resolution. 
 
Farmington- 220th Street- ROE Agreement 
John Powell, Public Works Director for the City of Farmington, discussed the proposed extension to 
the trunk water main and sanitary sewer along 220th Street between Eureka and Farmington.  The 
proposal includes installing stubs for future connections, which would be subject to a separate 
agreement.   The City of Farmington is also proposing to pave the road and then handle all future 
maintenance on that  portion of the road.  The existing maintenance agreement would not apply to 
the pavement portion but would remain in effect on the remaining gravel.  The Clerk will send over 
an updated draft agreement and the Clerk/’Treasurer will send it to the Township attorney for 
review.   
 
Mining Reviews 
Dakota Aggregates – Brosseth Pit (IUP) 
Motion: Vice Chair Ceminsky moved to approve Dakota Aggregates, Brosseth Pit IUP as reviewed.  
Supervisor Barfknecht seconded the motion.    Motion carried 5-0. 
 
Dakota Aggregates – Storlie Pit (CUP) 
Motion: Vice Chair Ceminsky moved to approve Dakota Aggregates, Storlie Pit CUP as reviewed.  
Supervisor Barfknecht seconded the motion.    Motion carried 5-0. 
 
Friedges Landscaping (CUP) 
Motion: Vice Chair Ceminsky moved to approve Friedges Landscaping CUP as reviewed.  Supervisor 
Barfknecht seconded the motion.    Motion carried 5-0. 
 
Vermillion River Aggregates (CUP) 
Motion: Vice Chair Ceminsky moved to approve Vermillion River Aggregates CUP as reviewed.  
Supervisor Barfknecht seconded the motion.    Motion carried 5-0. 
 
CUP Reviews Continued 
Glory to Glory 
Motion: Supervisor Novacek moved to approve the Glory to Glory CUP review.   Vice Chair Ceminsky 
seconded the motion.     Motion carried 5-0. 
Northern Natural Gas Replacement Project 
Clerk Atwater reported that the project would require an CUP.   Clerk Atwater is working with the 
vendor to obtain all necessary paperwork and the process. 
 
 
 
 

166



Road Report 
Vice Chair Ceminsky reported that Dakota County has submitted a list of items the Township needs 
to review and repair regarding the bridges in the Township.  Vice Chair Ceminsky had a meeting with 
Todd Howard from Dakota County.   Mr. Howard has agreed to put 2 miles of dust coating on Denmark 
and about a half a mile of gravel on from Country Road 86 to 279th Street.   Scott’s Miracle Grow has 
agreed to pay $15,000 to Eureka to help cover the right-of-way repairs needed by their business.  
Repairs include culvert repair and repositioning.   Castle Rock has approached Vice Chair Ceminsky 
about swapping sections of roads on Denmark.  The Town Board members agreed to have Vice Chair 
Ceminsky have an initial discussion with Castle Rock on requirements to consider the exchange and 
then the Town Board can decide if another meeting needs to be set up.   
 
Consent Agenda 
Motion: Vice Chair Ceminsky moved to approve items A, B, and C, on the consent agenda for the 
Township meeting minutes.   Chair Storlie seconded the motion.  Motion carried 5-0.    
Items were as follows: 

a. 2.11.2025 Special Town Board Minutes 
b. 2.11.2025 Town Board Minutes 
c. 2.27.2025 Special Town Board Minutes 

 
Treasurer’s Report 
Clerk/Treasurer Atwater read the Treasurer’s Report as of February 28, 2025: Total of all accounts 
was: $1,162,104.37. 
 
Motion: Vice Chair Ceminsky moved to accept the Treasurer’s Report dated February 2025 as 
presented.  Supervisor Novacek seconded the motion.  Roll call vote: Allen Novacek – Aye; Tim Pope 
– Aye; Pete Storlie- Aye; Mark Ceminsky – Aye; Lu Barfknecht - Aye.  Motion carried 5-0. 
 
Net Pay and claims 
The Clerk presented payroll in the amount of $3,388.22 and claims in the amount of $14,324.91 for 
payment.  See page 6 for a list of claims.   
 
Motion: Chair Storlie moved to approve the net pay and claims as presented.  Supervisor Novacek 
seconded the motion.  Roll call vote: Allen Novacek – Aye; Tim Pope – Aye; Pete Storlie- Aye; Mark 
Ceminsky – Aye; Lu Barfknecht - Aye.  Motion carried 5-0. 
 
Receipts and Disbursements 
Clerk/Treasurer Atwater presented the January receipts in the amount of $18,112.20 and 
disbursements in the amount of $35,481.67. 
 
Other Treasurer Reports 
Clerk Atwater reviewed the Cash Control Statement, Schedule 1, PTO, and Investments with accrued 
interest with the Town Board. 
 
Unfinished Business 
Township Enforcement- Dakota County Sheriff Alternative Solutions 
Attorney Gilchrist recommended a prosecutor who would be willing to handle situations on a case-
by-case basis at an hourly rate.   

167



 
Orderly Annexation Agreement- Conversation with Cities 
Chair Storlie stated that an initial meeting was held with Lakeville to learn about their future plans 
and growth plan.   A future meeting will be scheduled with Farmington.   
 
City of Lakeville- 222nd Street 
The city of Lakeville is extending 222nd Street and creating a cul-de-sac at the end.   The Town Board 
is requesting a meeting with County Commissioner Slavik to discuss this road and the County’s plans 
and intentions with this road.   
 
MPM/Chard Mining Reclamation 
Clerk/Treasurer Atwater reported she has not received any information from MPM as requested.  
Chair Storlie to call Attorney Gilchrist to discuss future actions.    
 
Bids for Tree and Stump Removal on 225th 

Supervisor Pope excused himself to the audience and stated, “I am recusing myself because I have a 
vested interest.” 
The following quotes were received: 

• Fredrickson Dirt Works - $4,855.00 
• Pope Premium Enterprises - $4,190.00 
• Tree Masters - $4,500.00 

 
Motion: Supervisor Novacek moved to hire Pope Enterprise for $4,190.00.   Vice Chair Ceminsky 
seconded the motion.   Motion carried 4-0.  
 
Motion: Vice Chair Ceminsky moved to approve Resolution 2025-03 Resolution authorizing contract 
with interested officer under Minn. Statute 471.88, Subd. 5.   Supervisor Novacek seconded the 
motion.   Motion carried 4-0.  
 
Supervisor Pope rejoined the Town Board.  
 
Financial Policies 
Motion: Vice Chair Ceminsky moved to adopt the financial policies that have been set forth on pages 
76-81.  Supervisor Novacek  seconded the motion.   Vice Chair Ceminsky amended his motion to 
include the documents listed on the pages.   Page 76- Operating Budget Policies, 77- Revenue Policies, 
78- Expenditure Policies, 79- Accounting, Auditing and Financial Reporting, 80- Investment and 
Reserve Policies, 81- Capital Improvement Program Policies.   Supervisor Barfknecht seconded the 
amended motion.  Motion carried 5-0.  
 
Dakota Electric- Lakeville Residents 
Clerk/Treasurer Atwater to send notification to Eureka citizens regarding the error in Dakota 
Electric’s recent letter regarding a franchise fee.   Eureka residents should not get charged this fee.   
 
 
 
 
 

168



 
New Business 
Quote for Desks for Meeting Room 
Nushape quote for three desks was $4,105.00. 
Motion: Chair Storlie moved to approve the quote of $4,105.00 for three additional supervisors’ desks.  
Vice Chair Ceminsky seconded the motion.  Chair Storlie amended his motion to authorize the 
treasurer to cut a check for 50%.  Vice Chair Ceminsky seconded the amendment.  Motion carried 5-0.    
 
Resolution 2025-04 consenting to Dakota County registering cannabis businesses within Eureka 
Township.   
Motion: Supervisor Novacek moved to accept Resolution 2025-04 resolution consenting to Dakota 
County registering cannabis businesses within Eureka Township.  Chair Storlie seconded the motion.  
Motion carried 5-0.   
 
Town Hall Lawn Care 
Ottomatic 2025 Property Maintenance Bid for $850.00 a month and additional costs for fertilizer and 
chemical spray.   
 
Motion: Vice Chair Ceminsky moved to accept Ottomatic, lawn care, landscaping, snow removal out of 
Hampton 2025 property maintenance bid for Eureka Township.   Supervisor Barfknecht seconded 
the motion.  Motion carried 5-0.    
  
Tree Grant  
The Town Board agreed WSB should look into applying for the tree grant for the Township.  
 
Clerk Matters 
Clerk/Treasurer Atwater reported the Audit was completed with no errors or issues.   
Clerk/Treasurer Atwater will be on vacation from March 26-28, 2025. 
 
Adjournment 
Motion:  Chair Storlie moved to adjourn the meeting.  Supervisor Barfknecht seconded the motion.   
Motion carried 5-0. 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 8:52 pm. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Liz Atwater, Town Clerk 
 
Minutes Officially Approved By:    ___________________________________________ on: __________________                     

Town Chair                                                  Date 
 
 
 
 

169



 
Date Vendor Check # Description Total 
03/12/2025 Payroll ending 2/28/2025 11646 Payroll ending 2/28/2025 $    2,155.00 
03/12/2025 Payroll ending 2/28/2025 11647 Payroll ending 2/28/2025 $       446.58 
03/12/2025 Payroll ending 2/28/2025 11648 Payroll ending 2/28/2025 $       786.64 
03/12/2025 Elizabeth Atwater 11649 Mileage and Reimbursement $             .28     
03/12/2025 Mark Ceminsky 11650 February Road Mileage $       109.90 
03/12/2025 Central Farm Services 11651 Propane $    1,119.80 
03/12/2025 Dakota County Taxation 11652 Notices $       179.94 
03/12/2025 ECM Publishers 11653 Elections $       217.80 
03/12/2025 Inspectron 11654 Inspections $    3,068.34 
03/12/2025 JTN 11655 Internet $       199.00 
03/12/2025 Kennedy & Graven 11656 Enforcement matters $   1,161.50 
03/12/2025 Amy Liberty 11657 Reimbursement $         17.35 
03/12/2025 Metro Sales 11658 Copier $       121.67 
03/12/2025 T&C Cleaning 11659 Cleaning March $       170.00 
03/12/2025 Town Law Center 11660 Legal $       384.00 
03/12/2025 WSB 11661 Services January 2025 $    2,776.25 
03/12/2025 Pope Premium 11662 Emergency Tree Removal $       775.00 
03/12/2025 IRS EFT20250312-1 February Payroll $    1,851.35 
03/12/2025 PERA EFT20250312-2 February Payroll $    1,138.73 
03/12/2025 Dakota Electric EFT20250312-3 Electric $       183.06 
03/12/2025 DSI EFT20250312-4 Trash $       163.05 
03/12/2025 Point North Networks EFT20250312-5 IT $       538.61 
03/12/2025 Visa EFT20250312-6 Adobe, Office Supplies $       149.28 
     
     

 

    

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

170



EUREKA TOWNSHIP 
Dakota County, State of Minnesota 

SPECIAL TOWN BOARD MEETING 
March 27, 2025 – 12:00 P.M. 

Call to Order 
The Eureka Township Town Board Special Meeting was called to order at 12:11 p.m. by Chair 
Ceminsky. 

Supervisors Present: Mark Ceminsky, Allen Novacek, and Tim Pope 

Others Present:  Amy Liberty,  Bob Alsop 

Purpose of the Special Town Board Meeting 
Chair Ceminsky stated the purpose of the special meeting is to discuss litigation and 
announced that the meeting could go into a closed session at 12:13pm. 

The closed session is pursuant to Minnesota Statute 13D.05, Subd. 3 (b) Meetings may be closed 
if the closure is expressly authorized by statute or permitted by the attorney-client privilege.  

Chair Ceminsky declared that the closed, March 27, 2025 meeting regarding the special 
litigation is now a open meeting and open to calling for adjournment. Supervisor Novacek 
asked if there was a need for a further statement. Chair Ceminsky added, this meeting is in 
regards to zoning enforcement litigation in the matter of Heyda case no: 19HA-CV-247-2711.   

Adjournment 
Motion: Supervisor Pope moved to adjourn the Special Town Board Meeting.  Supervisor 
Novacek seconded the motion.   Motion carried 3-0. 

The meeting adjourned at 12:43pm. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Amy Liberty, Deputy Clerk 

Minutes Officially Approved By:    ___________________________________________ on: __________________ 
Town Chair                                                  Date 

171



Eureka Township 
Dakota County 

  State of Minnesota 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2025-____ 
 

A RESOLUTION DESIGNATING THE NEWSPAPER FOR OFFICIAL PUBLICATIONS 
 

 
WHEREAS, Pursuant to State Statute 331A.04 Designation of a newspaper for official 
publication; designations Subd. 1, the governing body of a political subdivision, when 
authorized or required by statute or charter to designate a newspaper for publication of its 
public notices. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Town Board of Eureka Township, Dakota County, 
Minnesota has declared the Dakota County Tribune as the designated Newspaper for Official 
Publications.   
  
Whereupon the Chairperson declared the Resolution to be duly passed and adopted on 
_____________________, 2025   by the Eureka Town Board. 
 
 
      _____________________________________________________ 
      Town Board Chair 
 
      ______________________________________________________ 
       Liz Atwater, Clerk 
 

172



§ 240-43 Performance standards.

The following performance standards shall apply to the keeping of animals within the 
Township: 

A. One animal unit shall be allowed for the first two contiguous contained acres, and one
additional animal unit for each additional contiguous acre.

B. No more than five animal units may be kept at any time.

[Amended 10-9-2012 by Ord. No. 2012-02] 

C. Animal unit density may be increased through the issuance of an Interim Use Permit,
subject to §240-32 and following: 

a. For determining additional animal units requested, only suitable area of the
property shall be considered.  Right-of-way, wetlands, wooded/treed areas, and 
other areas unusable for animals may be deducted from the total acreage of the 
property to determine suitable area. 

b. Animal unit density may be increased by no more than one additional animal
unit for each suitable acre. 

D. Subsections A, and B, and C shall only apply to parcels of land containing less than 40
contiguous acres.

D. E.  Animals may not be confined in a pen or building within 175 feet of any residential
dwelling not owned or leased by the owner of the animals. A site plan shall be filed with the
Town Clerk showing the location of all pens or buildings used to confine animals.

E.  F.  Minnesota Rules regarding feedlots shall apply. 

173



RESOLUTION 2025- 
 

RESOLUTION TO AMEND RESOLUTION 2024-27 

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors of Eureka Township approved resolution 2024-27; 

WHEREAS, Minn. Stat. § 367.05 directs the Town Board to set the compensation of Employees 
which includes the Clerk/Treasurer, Deputy Clerk/Treasurer, and Election Judges of the town; 

WHEREAS, The Township staff has recommended changes to the Compensation: 5.4 Regular, 
Special Town Board or Planning Meetings, Annual and Township Meetings and Public Hearings, 
and 5.5 Multiple Meetings; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Town Board of Eureka Township, Dakota County, 
Minnesota hereby amends the following policy regarding Compensation: 

 
 

 
1. 5.4 Regular, Special Town Board or Planning Commission Meetings, Annual and 

Township Meetings, and Public Hearings.  
• The Deputy Clerk/Treasurer will be paid $100.00 per meeting. The Deputy 

Clerk/Treasurer shall only be eligible for compensation if they attend the 
meeting to perform their official duties.  If a meeting is longer than 3 hours, the 
Deputy Clerk/Treasurer shall be paid for the meeting, and then at  their regular 
hourly rate for any time after 3 hours.  

• The Clerk/Treasurer will not receive meeting pay unless the meeting or hearing 
is called and paid for by a citizen and shall only be eligible for compensation if 
they are attending the meeting to perform their official duties.   

5.5 Multiple Meetings:  If multiple meetings are scheduled on the same day employees will  
be paid for each meeting as outlined in 5.4. 

2. Effective: This document is effective as of 4/1/2025. 

3. Amendments. The Board may amend this policy by resolution. 
 
Adopted this 8 day of April 2024. 

      BY THE BOARD 
 
 

Mark Ceminsky Chair 

Attest:    

Liz Atwater, Clerk-Treasurer 

174



175


	1-22260 Dodd Blvd., Report Cover
	2-22260 Dodd Blvd., Joint App Form Parts 1-3
	3-22260 Dodd Blvd., Joint App Form Parts 4-5
	4-22260 Dodd Blvd., Attachments C and D
	Wetland Banking Credits (Living Waters Baptist Church) - #DCA22671.pdf
	PURCHASE AGREEMENT
	WETLAND BANKING CREDITS

	Wetland Banking Credits (Joseph Miller) - #DCA22670.pdf
	PURCHASE AGREEMENT
	WETLAND BANKING CREDITS

	WCA_TEP_Form_Living_Waters_Property_Signed.pdf
	Minnesota Wetland Conservation Act
	Technical Evaluation Panel Form
	WCA_TEP_Form_Living_Waters_Propertyb.pdf
	Minnesota Wetland Conservation Act
	Technical Evaluation Panel Form


	WCA_TEP_Form_Miller_Property.pdf
	Minnesota Wetland Conservation Act
	Technical Evaluation Panel Form

	Wetland Banking Credits (Living Waters Baptist Church) - #DCA22671.pdf
	PURCHASE AGREEMENT
	WETLAND BANKING CREDITS

	Wetland Banking Credits (Joseph Miller) - #DCA22670.pdf
	PURCHASE AGREEMENT
	WETLAND BANKING CREDITS

	Resolution 2025-  Amending Resolution 2024-27.pdf
	RESOLUTION 2025-
	RESOLUTION TO AMEND RESOLUTION 2024-27




